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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 33
RD

 Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kumar Autocast 

Limited will be held on Sunday the 30
th

 day of September, 2018 at registered office of the Company 

situated at 11:00 A.M. at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab to transact the 

following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

ITEM NO.1: TO RECEIVE & ADOPT AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

OTHER REPORTS 

 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, Statement of Profit and 

Loss for the year ended on that date, together with Report of the Auditor’s and Director’s thereon. 

 

ITEM NO.2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ARUN KUMAR  SOOD 

 

To appoint Director Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (Holding DIN: 00685937), who retires by rotation in terms 

of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment in place 

of Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood. 

 

ITEM NO.3: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. AJAY KUMAR  SOOD 

 

To appoint Director Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (Holding DIN: 00685585), who retires by rotation in terms of 

Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment in place of 

Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood. 

 

ITEM NO. 4: RATIFICATION FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF 

THE COMPANY 

 



 

 

 

 

 

To consider and ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors of the company for the Financial  Year 2018-

19 and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the 

appointment of the M/s Ashwani & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company for a term of consecutive five years starting from Conclusion of 32
nd

 Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of 37
th
 Annual General Meeting of the company be and is hereby 

ratified at the 33
rd

 Annual General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration as may be finalized by 

the Director in consultation with auditor plus applicable service tax and reimbursement of travelling and 

out of pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose of audit.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

ITEM NO: 4. BLANKET APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of Listing Agreement executed with the Stock 

Exchanges (including any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof), and also pursuant to the 

consent of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolutions passed in their respective 

meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby for entering into the following proposed Related 

Party Transactions at Arm Length Price with respect to sale and purchase of goods and raw material by 

and from Kumar Autocast Limited for the financial year 2018-19 upto the maximum per annum amounts 

as appended in table below: 

Sr. 

No 

Name of the 

Related Party 

Relationship Maximum Value of Transaction 

per Annum 

1 Kumar Exports Directors having Significant Interest 30 Crore 

2 Forgewell Directors having Significant Interest 5 Crore 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM NO. – 5 TO REGULARIZE OF ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR, SMT. NEHA SOOD, BY 

APPOINTING HER AS DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 

Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions (including 

any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of 

shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Smt. Neha Sood as director of the 

company who was appointed as an Additional Director in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 

(29.05.2018) and whose term expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company .The 

Company has received a notice in writing proposing her candidature for the office of the Director of the 

Company whose period of office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation."  

 

ITEM NO. – 6 TO INCREASE REMUNERATION OF MR. AJAY KUMAR SOOD, WHOLE 

TIME DIRECTOR FROM RS. 250,000 PER MONTH TO RS. 3,00,000 W.E.F 01
ST

 OF OCTOBER 

2018. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable 

provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”)  read with schedule V to the said act and the 

companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association 

of  the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the 

company be and is hereby accorded to increase in the remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood as Whole 

Time Director of the company from Rs. 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month 

to Rs. 3,00,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) including House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- (Rs. Fifty 

Thousand Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the provision of 

Schedule V of the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits 

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration: 

Sr. No Remuneration Details 

I Basic Salary Rs. 250,000/- Per Month 



 

 

 

 

 

II House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month 

III Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned 

below:   

a) Medical Reimbursement Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India 

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and 

surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for 

himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

b) Leave Travel Concession Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on 

leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in 

accordance with the rules of the Company. 

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or 

abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a 

maximum of two (2) clubs. 

d) Personal Accident  Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum. 

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for 

personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost. 

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for 

each completed year of service. 

g) Contribution to Provident 

Fund 

Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund 

and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income 

Tax Act, 1961. 

h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee 

relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and 

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.  

 

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such 

rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to 

approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment 

including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give 

effect to this resolution.  

 

ITEM NO. – 6 TO INCREASE REMUNERATION OF MR. ASHISH KUMAR SOOD, WHOLE 

TIME DIRECTOR FROM RS. 250,000 PER MONTH TO RS. 3,00,000 W.E.F 01
ST

 OF OCTOBER 

2018. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable 

provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”)  read with schedule V to the said act and the 



 

 

 

 

 

companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association 

of  the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the 

company be and is hereby accorded to increase in the remuneration of Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood as Whole 

Time Director of the company from Rs. 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month 

to Rs. 3,00,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) including House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- (Rs. Fifty 

Thousand Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the provision of 

Schedule V of the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits 

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration: 

Sr. No Remuneration Details 

I Basic Salary Rs. 250,000/- Per Month 

II House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month 

III Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned 

below:   

a) Medical Reimbursement Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India 

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and 

surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for 

himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

b) Leave Travel Concession Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on 

leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in 

accordance with the rules of the Company. 

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or 

abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a 

maximum of two (2) clubs. 

d) Personal Accident  Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum. 

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for 

personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost. 

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for 

each completed year of service. 

g) Contribution to Provident 

Fund 

Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund 

and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income 

Tax Act, 1961. 

h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee 

relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and 

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.  

 

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such 

rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to 

approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment 

including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give 

effect to this resolution.  

ITEM NO. – 7 TO INCREASE REMUNERATION OF MR. ARUN KUMAR SOOD, MANAGING 

DIRECTOR FROM RS. 250,000 PER MONTH TO RS. 3,00,000 W.E.F 01
ST

 OF OCTOBER 2018. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable 

provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”)  read with schedule V to the said act and the 

companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association 

of  the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the 

company be and is hereby accorded to increase in the remuneration of Mr. Arun Kumar Sood as 

Managing Director of the company w.e.f. 01.10.2018 from Rs. 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty 

Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,00,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) including House Rent 

Allowance Rs. 50,000/- (Rs. Fifty Thousand Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be 

ascertained under the provision of Schedule V of the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Arun Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits 

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration: 

Sr. No Remuneration Details 

I Basic Salary Rs. 250,000/- Per Month 

II House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month 

III Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned 

below:   

a) Medical Reimbursement Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India 

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and 

surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for 

himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

b) Leave Travel Concession Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on 

leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in 

accordance with the rules of the Company. 

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or 

abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a 

maximum of two (2) clubs. 

d) Personal Accident  Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum. 

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for 



 

 

 

 

 

personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost. 

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for 

each completed year of service. 

g) Contribution to Provident 

Fund 

Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund 

and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income 

Tax Act, 1961. 

h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee 

relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and 

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.  

 

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such 

rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to 

approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment 

including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give 

effect to this resolution.  

 

 

By Order of the Board 

                                          For Kumar Autocast Limited

  

Place:  Ludhiana                                                                 

Date:   05.09.2018                                                                                              

                                                               

(Ajay Kumar Sood) 

                                                                                                                             Whole Time Director    

(DIN: - 00685585) 

                                                                                                           House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road, 

                                                                                                           Urban Estate Ludhiana, Pb 

 

Notes: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

on a poll instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy, 

in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The 

Blank Proxy form is enclosed. 



 

 

 

 

 

2. In Compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listed 

Obligations And Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company has provided a facility to 

the members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged 

by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The facility for voting through ballot paper, will also be 

made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes 

by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes 

again. 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are 

requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and 

vote in their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

4.  A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate 

not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member 

holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 

appoint single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 

shareholder. 

5.   A statement giving the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment under Item No. 2, 3, 

5, 6, 7 of the accompanying Notice is annexed herewith in explanatory statement. 

6.  Members are requested to intimate their queries, if any, related to accounts at least seven days in 

advance of meeting so that information can be made available and furnished at meeting. 

7.  All documents referred to in the notice, unless otherwise specifically stated will be available for 

members for inspection at the registered office of the Company between 10.30 am to 12.30 pm from the 

date hereof upto the date of Annual General Meeting. 

8.  The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from Thursday the 20
th

 

September, 2018 to Sunday 30
th

 September, 2018 (Both Days inclusive). 

9. Mr. Kiranpreet Kaur proprietor of Kiranpreet & Associates has been appointed as scrutinizer for 

providing the report on results of poll/vote for the resolution passed during the AGM. 

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in physical 

form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Company Skyline Financial Services Private 

Limited. 



 

 

 

 

 

11. The Result of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company will be declared within 48 working 

hours of Conclusion of AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer Report shall be placed on 

Company’s website and on the website of CDSL and will be communicated to the stock exchanges.   

12. M/s Kiranpreet & Associates, Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner (including the ballot forms received from 

members who do not have access to the e-voting process). The scrutinizer shall within a period of three 

working days from the conclusion of e-voting period, unblock the votes in presence of at least two 

witnesses not in employment of the company and make a report of the votes cast in favour or against, if 

any, forthwith to the chairman of the company.    

 

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:  

 

(i) The voting period begins on 27
th

 Sep, 2018 (9:00 am) and ends on 29
th

 Sep, 2018 (5:00 pm). 

During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of may cast their vote electronically. The 

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.  

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

 

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.  

 

(iv) Click on “Shareholders” tab.  

 

(v) Now Enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.  

 

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 

on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:  

 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two 

letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the 

PAN field.   

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 

number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the 

name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 3 Ramesh Kumar with 

sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field 

Dividend Bank Details 

OR Date of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 

as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to 

login.   

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 

details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 

(ix) After entering these details    appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.  

 

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu 

wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of 

any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 

through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 

person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

 

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

(xii) Click on the EVSN 170904015 <KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED> for the relevant on which you 

choose to vote.  

 

(xiii)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that 

you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.  

 

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.  

 

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 

click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.  

 

(xvi)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

(xvii)  You can also take a print of the vote cast    

           by clicking on “Click here to print”   

           option on the Voting page.  

 

(xviii)   If a demat account holder has forgotten 

            the login password then Enter the User    

          ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted 

by the system. 

 

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android 

based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google play store. Apple and windows 

phone user can download the app from the App store and windows Phone store respectively on or 

after 30
th

 June, 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobiles app while voting 

on your mobile. 

  

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians   

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian• are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.  

 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.   



 

 

 

 

 

 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 

on.  

  

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 

on 

• approval of the accounts they would be 

able to cast their vote.  

  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have• issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same.  

 

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section 

or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED 
Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab. 

Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.com Telephone No: 0161-2671428 

CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013: 

ITEM NO. 2 OF THE ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

INFORMATION AND DETAILS REGARDING DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN 

THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

Name of the Director 

 

ARUN KUMAR SOOD AJAY KUMAR SOOD 

Director Identification Number (DIN)  

00685937 

00685585 

Date of Birth 13/12/1948 26/08/1954 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board 01/10/2002 01/10/2007 

Qualification MA Economics LLB 

No. of Shares Held 1762950 676200 

List of Directorships held in other 

Companies (excluding foreign, private 

and Section 8 Companies) 

NIL NIL 

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit 

and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committees across Public Companies 

NIL NIL 

Relationship with other Directors Related to Mr. Ajay Kumar 

Sood and Mr. Ashish Kumar 

Sood 

Related to Mr. Arun 

Kumar Sood and Mr. 

Ashish Kumar Sood 

 

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the company/their relatives is concerned 

or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 2 and 3. 

 

ITEM NO. 5, 6 & 7 OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

The members may note that based on the recommendations of the board of directors of the company at 

their meeting held on 04.09.2018, approve the Revision/Increase of remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kumar 

Sood, Whole Time Director, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing Director & Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole 

Time Director of the company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, from Rs. 2,50,000 (Two 

Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,00,000 (Rupees Three Lakh Only) per month each w.e.f 



 

 

 

 

 

01st October, 2018 including House Rent Allowance (HRA) Rs. 50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) 

plus all perquisites for the remaining period of their office valid till 30.09.2021. 

 

Therefore the Board of Directors and Nomination & Remuneration Committee, subject to such approval of 

shareholders is proposing to increase the remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood & 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood for the remaining period of their office valid till 30.09.2021 on a maximum 

remuneration of  Rs. 3,00,000 (Rupees Three Lakh Only) p.m. or such other limit as may be ascertained 

under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act ,payable as per rules and policies of the company” 

 

Since the company does not having adequate profits to make the managerial remuneration as per Section 

198 of the companies act, 2013, the above proposal requires approval of shareholders of the company to 

pay managerial remuneration as per Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the proposal is before 

shareholders for approval through special resolution. 

 

Statement Required pursuant to provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given below, 

 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 

1. Nature of Industry:  

 

The company carries the business of casting Automotive & Locomotive (Railways) Parts and provides 

casting of several OEM products to leading global automotives players in India as well as in abroad.  

 

2. Date and Expected date of commencement of Commercial Production: 

 

The Commercial Production of the company’s product is started in the year of 1985. 

 

3. In Case of New Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved 

by financial institution appearing in the prospectus: 

 

Not Applicable. 

 

4. Financial Performance Based on the given indicators: 

 

Company earned the total revenue before tax during the financial year 2017-18 of Rs 146.50 Lakhs as 

compared to Rs. 123.53 Lakhs during the financial year 2016-17. Although company has made the 

expenses of Human Capital and fixed assets, the company’s gross profit margin is increased in financial 

year 2017-18 as compared to profit of 2016-17. 

 

5. Foreign Investment and Collaboration: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood): 

 

1. Background Details:  



 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood; is the Whole Time Director of the company. During this Period he has served the 

company with best of his capabilities. He is the person of immense enthusiasm and dynamism possessing 

sharp ability for business decision making. He carries with himself a vast business experience. Mr. Ajay 

Kumar Sood completed his Higher Education from Punjab University and is holding degree in LLB from 

Kurukshetra University. His association with the Company supported by strong determination, vast 

knowledge and 33 years of experience in the field of law and practice is expected to be highly beneficial 

for identifying potential growth plans and projects for business expansion. Currently, he is the (Director 

Commercial) Marketing and Finance in the Company. 

 

2. Past Remuneration:  

 

Past Remuneration is Rs. 250,000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and 

Perquisites as per the company policies. 

 

3. Recognition or Awards: 

 

Not applicable 

  

 

4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee:  

 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last couple of years and has been contributing 

in his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the 

recommendation of the Board along with Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood 

is a suitable candidate for his re-appointment as Whole Time Director of the Company. 

 

5. Remuneration Proposed: 

 

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 300,000/- (Rupees Three Lakh Only) p.m., such 

other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act, Plus other Perquisites & 

Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the company, for the remaining 

period of their office valid till 30.09.2021.  

 

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the 

position of the company. 

 

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position,   

responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood in the company and the 

proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the 

industry and befits his position. 

 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if, 

any: 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship 

with the company, although Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing 

Director & Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director. 

 

III. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Arun Kumar Sood): 

 

1.   Background Details: 

 

Mr. Arun Kumar Sood; is the Managing Director of the company. During this Period he has served the 

company with best of his capabilities. Mr. Arun Kumar Sood completed his Graduation from Punjab 

University and holds a Post Graduation degree in MA Economics from Punjab University. The wide 

exposure has made him wise and result oriented person adding to his dedication and determination to take 

the Company to great heights involving widespread growth and prosperity. Currently he holds the position 

of Production Director (Technical) having expertise in castings. 

 

2. Past Remuneration: 

 

Past Remuneration is Rs. 250, 000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and 

Perquisites as per the company policies. 

3. Recognition or Awards: 

 

Not applicable 

 

4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee: 

 

Mr. Arun Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last couple of years and has been contributing 

in his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the 

recommendation of the Board, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood is a suitable candidate for his re-appointment as 

Managing Director of the Company. 

 

5. Remuneration Proposed: 

 

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) p.m., 

such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act , Plus other 

Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the company, for the 

remaining period of their office valid till 30.09.2021.  

 

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the 

position of the company. 

 

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position, 

responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Arun Kumar Sood in the company and the 

proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the 

industry and befits his position. 

 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if ,any: 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Arun Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship 

with the company, although Mr. Arun Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time 

Director & Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director. 

 

IV. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood): 

 

1.   Background Details: 

 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood; is the Whole Time Director of the company. During this Period he has served the 

company with best of his capabilities. . He is a Graduate in BA (Arts) from Punjab University. He has been 

a crucial part of the Company since its incorporation and his active participation in the affairs of the 

Company in the past 28 years is expected to be more beneficial as the Company grows and expands its 

business plans. Currently, he is the Director Purchase {Relationship Manager} in the Company. 

 

 

2. Past Remuneration: 

 

Past Remuneration is Rs. 250,000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and 

Perquisites as per the company policies. 

 

3. Recognition or Awards: 

 

Not applicable 

 

4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee: 

 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last couple of years and has been 

contributing in his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the 

basis of the recommendation of the Board, Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood is a suitable candidate for his re-

appointment as Whole Time Director of the Company. 

 

5. Remuneration Proposed: 

 

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Only) p.m., 

such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act , Plus other 

Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the company, for the 

remaining period of their office valid till 30.09.2021.  

 

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the 

position of the company. 

 

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position, 

responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood in the company and the 

proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the 

industry and befits his position. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if ,any: 

 

Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship 

with the company, although Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing 

Director & Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director. 

 

1V     Other Information  

 

1. Reason of Loss Or Inadequate Profits: 

 

There is lot of new competition in the market, though the size of market is increasing but due to severe 

competition and the global economic slowdown leads the current financial results into inadequate profits. 

 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The company has taken stringent cost 

actions and continues to curtail both employee and non employee costs. Also, the management continues 

to explore avenues to increase the revenue. 

 

3. Expected increase in Productivity and Profits : 

 

The company is committed to build the business operations within budget and considering that the 

business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that financial position of the company will 

improve in near future. 

 

The Directors recommend the resolutions set in item no 5-7 for approval of shareholders by way of special 

resolution. 

 

 

Memorandum of Interest 

 

None of the Directors, key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are interested in the above proposals 

except proposed appointee’s to the extent of their re-appointment.  

 

By Order of the Board 

                                         For Kumar Autocast Limited  

Place:  Ludhiana                                                                 

Date:   05.09.2018                                                                                              

 

                                                    

(Ajay Kumar Sood) 

                                                                                                                             Whole Time Director    

(DIN: - 00685585) 

                                                                                                          House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road, 

                                                                                                           Urban Estate Ludhiana, Pb

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED 
Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab. 

Email Id: asood@kumarautocast.com Telephone No: 0161-2671428 

CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their 33
rd

Annual Report on the affairs of the 

Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarized below: 

(Amt. in Lacs) 

PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17 

Revenue from operations(Gross) 3765.55 3685.53 

Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 229.83 200.57 

        Less:  Interest & Financial Expenses  37.59 36.64 

Profit Before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) 192.24 163.93 

        Less: Depreciation  45.72 38.59 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 146.52 125.34 

        Less: Provision For Taxation 35.72 37.36 

         Deferred Tax Charge 6.17 4.35 

        Add: Deferred Tax Assets - - 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Profit For The Period and After Tax (PAT) 104.63 81.83 

        Earnings Per Share (Rs.)     

                  -Basic 2.02 1.58 

                  -Diluted 2.02 1.58 

Balance Available for Appropriation 104.63 81.83 

      Less:  Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares   - - 

                 Tax on Proposed Dividend - - 

                  Transfer to General Reserve - - 

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 104.63 82.60 

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods 

upto and including the year ending 31 March 2017, the company prepared its financial statements in 

accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms 

of Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 

standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 

accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting 

standards on an ongoing basis. 

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

A. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS: 

PRODUCTION & SALES REVIEW: 

During the year, the Revenue from operations was Rs. 3759.71 Lacs as against Rs. 3680.74 Lacs in the 

previous year. The Company earned other income of Rs. 5.84 Lacs during the year as against Rs. 4.79 

Lacs during last year.  

PROFITABILITY: 

The Company earned profit before depreciation, interest and tax of Rs. 229.83 Lacs as against Rs. 200.57 

Lacs in the previous year. After providing for depreciation of Rs. 45.72 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 38.59 

Lacs), the profit after tax was Rs. 104.63 Lacs as against Rs. 81.83 Lacs last year. 

B. RESOURCE UTILISATION:  

FIXED ASSETS: 

The net fixed assets as at 31st March, 2018 were Rs. 416.05 Lacs as against previous year’s fixed assets of 

Rs. 362.62 Lacs. During the year, there were additions of fixed assets amounting to Rs. 100.85 Lacs 

Previous Year Rs. 125.83 Lacs. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

The net current assets as on 31st March, 2017 were Rs. 12, 59, 96,395.63 as against Rs. 12, 84, 15,442.48 

in the previous year. 

C. FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND LIQUIDITY: 

Management believes that the Company’s liquidity and capital resources are sufficient to meet its expected 

working capital needs and other anticipated cash requirements. The position of liquidity and capital 

resources of the Company is given below: - 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

                         (Amt in Lakhs.) 

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 

Beginning of the Year 

 

(115.81) (347.73) 

End of the Year 

 

(126.03) (115.81) 

Net Cash provided/(used) by: 

 

  

       - Operating Activities 

 

189.33 274.22 

       - Investing Activities 

 

(93.34) (115.49) 

       - Financing Activities 

 

(66.21) 33.18 

 

3. DIVIDEND  

To keep and conserve the profits and reserves for future expansion of the company the Board of Directors 

of the company has not recommended any dividend for the year 2017-2018.  

4. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As required pursuant to Section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this 

Annual Report  as ANNEXURE I . 

 

5. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy 

apart from other Board business.   

The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors. Usually, meetings of the Board 

are held in Registered Office, Ludhiana to discuss the complex business strategies. The Agenda of the 

Board / Committee meetings is circulated at least a week prior to the date of the meeting. The Agenda for 



 

 

 

 

 

the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to 

enable the Directors to take an informed decision.  

The Board met Eleven times in financial year 2017–18 viz., on 26.04.2017, 22.05.2017, 03.08.2017, 

11.08.2017, 08.09.2017, 01.11.2017, 09.11.2017, 16.12.2017, 09.02.2018, 13.03.2018, 28.03.2018. The 

maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days 

5. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 

2013: 

a). that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures, if any; 

b). that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that 

period; 

c). that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the Assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d). that Directors’ have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e). the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

f). the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

6. COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT 

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made: 

(i)  By the auditor in his report; and 

(ii) By the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report. 

 

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable. 

 

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 

PARTIES: 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related 

parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details of material 



 

 

 

 

 

contracts/ arrangements/ transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is annexed 

hereto in Form AOC-2 and forms part of this report as ANNEXUREII. 

 

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

NIL amounts is transferred to the General Reserve. However an amount of Rs. 

104.63 Lakhs are proposed to be retained in the surplus. 

 

10. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION 

FUND 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 company has not having 

any unpaid dividend or excess share application amount in the book of accounts. As company has not 

declared any dividend in the previous year, hence no amount is transferred to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund.  

11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL 

YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT: 

 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between 

the ends of the financial year to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report. 

 

12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in our Company. Efforts are made to 

optimize the energy cost while carrying out the manufacturing operations. Particulars with respect to 

conservation of energy and other areas as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are annexed hereto and form part of this report as Annexure III and 

is attached to this report. 

 

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the 

said provisions as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

14. BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4)of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its 

own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, 

Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The performance evaluations of all the 

independent Directors have been done by the entire board excluding the director being evaluated. On the 

basis of the performance evaluation done by the board it shall be determined whether to extend or continue 

their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires. 



 

 

 

 

 

15. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company. 

 

16.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

(Amt. in Lacs) 

PARTICULARS  2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 

Revenue from 

operations(Gross) 

3765.55 3685.53 2987.61 2972.51 2890.22 

TOTAL INCOME 3765.55 3685.53 2994.18 2979.44 2893.38 

Earnings before 

Depreciation, 

Finance Cost & 

Tax expenses 

(EBDIT) 

229.83 200.57 174.92 189.96  178.87 

Less: Depreciation 

& 

         Amortization 

 

45.72 38.59 31.54 37.84 30.62 

Finance Cost 37.59 36.41 43.28 46.35 35.89 

 

PROFIT FOR 

THE YEAR 

106.10 80.98 100.10 105.76 112.36 

Equity Dividend%   - - - - - 

Dividend payout - - - - - 

Equity Share Capital 518.70 24.70 24.70 24.70 24.61 

Equity Share 

Suspense Account 

- - - - - 

Equity Share 

warrants 

- - - - - 

Reserves & Surplus 429.86 833.35 751.90 650.71 572.85 

Net Worth 948.56 858.05 776.60 675.41 597.46 

Borrowings (Long 

term & Short 

term) 

564.61 328.87 456.29 332.32 305.14 



 

 

 

 

 

Gross Fixed Assets 501.05 696.60 594.39 627.41 540.10 

Less: Depreciation      

Net Fixed Assets 362.82 362.60 285.05 248.00 194.52 

Investments - - - - - 

Face Value Per 

Share 

10 10 10 10 10 

EPS(Basic & 

Diluted) 

2.02 33.44 22.12 28.95 30.87 

*Company has allotted the bonus shares to its existing shares holders, which impact the EPS, as the 

number of paid up shares has been increased in ratio of 1:20. 

17. DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted and does not intend to accept any deposits from the public. As at 31
st
 

March, 2018 there are no outstanding/unclaimed deposits from the public. 

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

19. NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF 

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any one which may fall under the 

ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of 

every women working with the Company. The Policy framed by the Company in this regard provides for 

protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such 

complaints. 

20. PARTICULARS NO. OF COMPLAINTS TO PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT 

COMMITEE 

Number of Complaints pending as on beginning of the financial year NIL 

Number of Complaints filed during the financial year NIL 

Number of Complaints pending as on the end of the financial year NIL 

21. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has well defined internal control system. The Company takes abundant care to design, 

review and monitor the working of internal control system. Internal audit in the organization is an 



 

 

 

 

 

independent appraisal activity and all significant issues are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee 

of the Board. 

 

22. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or 

operation were observed. 

23. A). DIRECTORS 

i). APPOINTMENTS 

INDEPENDENT/WOMEN DIRECTOR 

At the 29
th
 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30.09.2014, the Members of the Company 

had designate Sh. Ramesh Kumar Sharma, Sh. Kamalinder Kumar Singla and Sh. Jatinder Kumar 

Malik as an Independent Directors of the Company, for a period of 5 years with effect from 06.12.2013. 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 

under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(6): 

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the board that they fulfill all the 

requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be 

appointed as Independent Directors. 

ii). RETIREMENT BY ROTATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (Holding 

DIN. 00685937), Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (Holding DIN 00685585) Whole-time Director of the Company 

retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.  

B). KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

There are no changes in the composition of Key Managerial Personnel during the year, and company has 

complied with the provisions of section 203 of Companies Act, 2013. 

24.  AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT 

 

A). STATUTORY AUDITORS 

According to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors), Rules, 2014 M/s Ashwani & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants, Ludhiana, be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company for a period 

of Five years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 37
th
 AGM at a 

remuneration as approved by Chairman of the company 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

B). SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

M/s Kiranpreet & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, were appointed as Secretarial Auditor of 

the Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 21.05.2018 for the financial year 2017-18 

The Secretarial Auditors of the Company have submitted their Report in Form No. MR-3 as required under 

Section 204, of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018. The Report forms 

part of this report as Annexure IV. 

C). INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

M/s J.S Bahl & Co, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company 

pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Board of Directors in their 

meeting held on 21.05.2018 to conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company and 

maintain internal control systems of the Company. 

25. BOARD COMMITTEES 

A. AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. 

The Audit and Risk Management committee of the Board of Directors was re-constituted on 18.06.2014 in 

conformity of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The committee comprises of two Independent 

directors i.e. Sh. Ramesh Kumar Sharma, Sh. Jatinder Kumar Malik and one executive director Sh. 

Ajay Kumar Sood. Sh. Ramesh Kumar Sharma is the Chairperson of the said committee. The Committee 

met Four (4) times during the year. 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was re-constituted by the Board on 18.06.2014, consisting of 

two Non Executive Independent directors i.e. Sh. Ramesh Kumar Sharma, Sh. Kamalinder Kumar 

Singla and one executive director Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood. Sh. Kamalinder Kumar Singla is the 

Chairperson of said Committee. The Committee met three times during the year under review. 

 

26. POLICIES 

A).VIGIL MECGHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a 

“Vigil Mechanism” incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the Listing Agreement for employees 

and directors of the Company, for expressing the genuine concerns of unethical behavior, frauds or 

violation of the codes of conduct by way of direct access to the Chairman/Chairman of the Audit 

Committee in exceptional cases. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against 

victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns 

B). REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated the Nomination & 

Remuneration policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration includes the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters as provided under Section 



 

 

 

 

 

178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed thereto and form 

part of this Report as ANNEXURE V. 

C). RISK MANAGEMENT  POLICY 

The Audit & Risk Management Committee has formulated Risk Management Policy of the Company 

which has been subsequently approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The aim of risk 

management policy is to maximize opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity. The policy 

includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting, which in 

the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 

 

D). RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY 

Related Party Transaction Policy, as formulated by the Company defines the materiality of related party 

transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing with Related Party Transactions that may have 

potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered with related parties as 

defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2017-18 were mainly in the Ordinary 

Course of business and on an arm's length basis. Prior approval of the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any Related Party Transaction as per the 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

 

27. SHARES 

 

A). BUY BACK OF SECURITIES 

 

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

 

B). SWEAT EQUITY 

 

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. 

 

C). BONUS SHARES 

 

Company has allotted 4,940,000 Equity shares via Bonus Issue at a ratio of (1:20) i.e in the proportion of 

20 (Twenty) new Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for every 1 (One) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each held by 

shareholder as on the Record Date.  

 

D).EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN 

 

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme. 

 

28. HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

The Company continues to lay emphasis on building and sustaining an excellent organization climate 

based on human performance. Performance management is the key word for the company. During the year 

the Company employed around 263 employees. 

Pursuit of proactive policies for industrial relations has resulted in a peaceful and harmonious situation on 

the shop floors of the various plants. 



 

 

 

 

 

29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 

The disclosures in respect of managerial remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule 

5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed 

hereto and form part of this report as Annexure VI. 

 

None of the employee of the Company receives salary of Rs. 60 Lacs per annum or Rs. 5 Lacs per month 

or more during the Financial Year 2017-2018 as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) Companies (Appointment & 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any Holding or 

Subsidiary Company. 

 

30. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Shares of the Company were listed on Ludhiana Stock Exchange Ltd but due to de-recognition of said 

stock exchange, LSE shall no longer be performing any Stock Exchange related activities post December 

30, 2014. 

In accordance with the SEBI guidelines, LSE has entered into agreement with National Stock Exchange 

(NSE) for shifting the Exclusive listed companies on Dissemination Board of NSE. National Stock 

Exchange Ltd vide circular no.NSE/CML/28210 dated November 28, 2014 has placed Exclusive listed 

companies of LSE on Dissemination Board and will be available for buying and selling on Dissemination 

Board of NSE w.e.f. December 01, 2014. 

As per the SEBI circular no. CIR/ MRD/ DSA/ 14/ 2012 dated 30
th
 May, 2012, the Companies on 

Dissemination Board, shall get its shares relisted on the any stock exchange having nationwide terminals, 

or provide the exit opportunity to its shareholders. In compliance of the above said circular, the Board has 

made the Re-listing application to Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (MSEI) and the equity shares of 

company has admitted for listing by MSEI w.e.f 1
st
 of March 2018 vide circular number 

MSE/LIST/6063/2018 dated 27
th
 of February, 2018. 

31. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements), 2015 which outlines the corporate 

governance report is not applicable to our company, as our company’s paid up capital is less than 10 crores 

and net worth is less than 25 crores for F.Y 2017 – 18. 

32. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the 

Companies Act 2013. The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies 

Act 2013. 

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Board of Directors places on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by the 

employees of the Company at all levels and the constructive co-operation extended by them. Your 

Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and support by all 



 

 

 

 

 

Government Authorities, Auditors, financial institutions, banks, suppliers, other business associates and 

last but not the least the Shareholders. 

 

  

 By and on behalf of the Board 

Kumar Autocast Limited 

  

Dated: 29.06.2018 

Place:  Ludhiana 

 

 

                                                             

Ajay Kumar Sood                             Arun Kumar Sood    

DIN: 00685585                                  DIN: 00685937  

2086, Phase-1, Urban,                    2086, Phase-1,Urban 

Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana          Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE 1 - EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

(Referred to Paragraph 17 under "Annual Return" section of our Report of even date) 

FORM NO. MGT 9 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014. 

 

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1 CIN L27101PB1985PLC006100 

2 Registration Date 09/01/1985 

3 Name of the Company KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED 

4 

  

Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited By Shares 

Non-govt company 

5 

  

Address of the Registered office  & contact 

details 

C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana, Punjab. 

Telephone No: 0161-267142 

6 Whether listed company Listed 

7 

  

Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 

Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd 

D – 153A, 1
st
 Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1 , 

New Delhi – 110020 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

S. No. Name and Description of main products / 

services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

%  to total 

turnover 

of the 

company 

1 
 

Casting  

 

243-Casting of metals 

 

100% 

 



 

 

 

 

 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

SN Name and address of 

the Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary

/ Associate 

% of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

NIL 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity) 

 

(i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 

Shareholder

s 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year 

[As on 31-March-2017] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2018] 
% 

Change 

during 

the year    
Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

A. 

Promoters 

  

                

(1) Indian                   

a) Individual/ 

HUF 

-  178900 178900 72.43% 3756900 - 3756900 72.43% 2000% 

b) Central 

Govt 

- -  - - - - - - - 

c) State 

Govt(s) 

- -  - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 

Corp. 

- -  - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - -  - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - -  - - - - - - - 

Sub Total 

(A) (1) 

-  178900 178900 72.43% 3756900 - 3756900 72.43% 2000% 



 

 

 

 

 

  

(2) Foreign          

a) NRI 

Individuals 

- -  - - - - - - - 

b) Other 

Individuals 

- -  - - - - - - - 

c) Bodies 

Corp. 

- -  - - - - - - - 

d) Any other - -  - - - - - - - 

Sub Total 

(A) (2) 

- -  - - - - - - - 

TOTAL (A) -  178900 1798900 72.43% 3756900 - 3756900 72.43% 2000% 

 

B. Public Shareholding 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year 

[As on 31-March-2017] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year 

[As on 31-March-2018] 
% 

Change 

during 

the year    
Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat 
Physic

al 
Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

1. Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds - -  - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - -  - - - - - - - 

c) Central Govt - -  - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - -  - - - - - - - 

e) Venture Capital Funds - -  - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance Companies - -  - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - -  - - - - - - - 

 h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

- -  - - - - - - - 



 

 

 

 

 

i) Others (specify) - -  - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(1):- - -  - - - - - - - 

  

2. Non-Institutions 

a) Bodies Corp. 

i) Indian - -  - - - - - - - 

ii) Overseas - -  - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals - -  - - - - - - - 

i) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital in 

excess of Rs 1 lakh 

- - - - - 883050 883050 17.02% 100% 

ii) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

uptoRs. 1 lakh 

- 58000 58000 23.48% - 334950 334950 6.45% 477.50% 

c) Others (specify) - -  - - - - - - - 

Non Resident Indians - 10100 10100 4.09% - 212100 212100 4.09% 2000% 

Overseas Corporate 

Bodies 

- -  - - - - - - - 

Foreign Nationals - -  - - - - - - - 

Clearing Members - -  - - - - - - - 

Trusts - -  - - - - - - - 

Foreign Bodies - D R - -  - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(2):- - 68100  68100 27.57% - 68100  68100 27.57% 2000% 

Total Public (B) - 68100  68100 27.57% - 1430100  1430100 27.57% 2000% 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year 

[As on 31-March-2017] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2018] 
% 

Change 

during 

the year    
Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

C. Shares held 

by Custodian 

for GDRs & 

ADRs 

- -  - - - - - - - 

Total 

(A+B+C) 

0.00  247000 247000 100.00

% 

3756900 1430100 5187000 100.00% 2000% 

 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter 

SN Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year 

% 

change 

during 

the 

year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

% of 

Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbere

d to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

company 

% of 

Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbere

d to total 

shares 

1 Arun Kumar Sood 83,950 33.99% 0.00 1762950 33.99% 0.00 2000% 

2 Ajay Kumar Sood 32,200 13.04% 0.00 67620 13.04% 0.00 2000% 

3 Ashish Kumar Sood 39,050 15.81% 0.00 820050 15.81% 0.00 2000% 

4 Shama Sood 13,550 5.49% 0.00 284550 5.49% 0.00 2000% 

5 Alka Sood 50 0.02% 0.00 1050 0.02% 0.00 2000% 

6 Seema Sood 10100 4.09% 0.00 212100 4.09% 0.00 2000% 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

SN Particulars Date Reason 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of shares 
% of total 

shares 
No. of shares 

% of total 

shares 

 

At the beginning of the 

year   
178900 72.43% 178900 72.43% 

 

Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
- - 3578000 72.43% 

 
At the end of the year 

  
3756900 72.43% 3756900 72.43% 

 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders 

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

SN 
For each of the Top 

10 shareholders 
Date Reason 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the Year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the Year 

No. of shares 
% of total 

shares 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares 

1 
Raghubir Singh 

Panchal      

 

 

 

At the beginning of 

the year 
  

10100 4.09% 10100 4.09% 

 

Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
202000 2000% 202000 2000% 

 
At the end of the year 

  
212100 4.09% 212100 4.09% 

2 Sh. Parajit Singh  
     

 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  5000 2.03% 5000 2.03% 

 
Changes during the 

08.09.17 
Bonus 

10000 2000% 10000 2000% 



 

 

 

 

 

year Issue 

 At the end of the year   105000 2.03% 105000 2.03% 

3 Smt. Rajinder Kaur      
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  4100 1.66% 4100 1.66% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
82000 2000% 82000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   86100 1.66% 86100 1.66% 

4 
Sh. Preet Mohinder 

Singh  
     

 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  4000 1.62% 4000 1.62% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
80000 2000% 80000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   84000 1.62% 84000 1.62% 

5 Sh. Vinod Sagar      
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  3500 1.42% 3500 1.42% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
70000 2000% 70000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   73500 1.42% 73500 1.42% 

6 Smt. Renu Sharma       
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  3500 1.42% 3500 1.42% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
70000 2000% 70000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   73500 1.42% 73500 1.42% 



 

 

 

 

 

7 Sh. Rakesh Dhanda      
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  2600 1.05% 2600 1.05% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
52000 2000% 52000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   54600 1.05% 54600 1.05% 

8 Sh. Bikram Singh      
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  2050 0.83% 2050 0.83% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
41000 2000% 41000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   43050 0.83% 43050 0.83% 

9 Sh. Surinder Abrol      
 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  2050 0.83% 2050 0.83% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
41000 2000% 41000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   43050 0.83% 43050 0.83% 

10 
Sh. Ramesh Kumar 

Sharma 
     

 

 

 
At the beginning of 

the year 
  2000 0.81% 2000 0.81% 

 
Changes during the 

year 
08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
40000 2000% 40000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   42000 0.81% 42000 0.81% 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SN 

Shareholding of each 

Directors and each Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Date Reason 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the year 

No. of shares 
% of total 

shares 

No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

shares 

1 Arun Kumar Sood 
      

 

At the beginning of the 

year   
83,950 33.99% 83,950 33.99% 

 
Changes during the year 08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
1,679,000 2000% 1,679,000 2000% 

 
At the end of the year 

  
1,762,950 33.99% 1,762,950 33.99% 

2 Ajay Kumar Sood 
      

 

At the beginning of the 

year 
  

32,200 13.04% 32,200 13.04% 

 
Changes during the year 08.09.17 

Bonus 

Issue 
644,000 2000% 644,000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   676,200 13.04% 676,200 13.04% 

3 Ashish Kumar Sood       

 
At the beginning of the 

year 
  39,050 15.81% 39,050 15.81% 

 Changes during the year 08.09.17 
Bonus 

Issue 
781,000 2000% 781,000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   820,050 15.81% 820,050 15.81% 

4 Pranav Khanna       

 
At the beginning of the 

year 
  1000 0.40% 1000 0.40% 

 Changes during the year 08.09.17 
Bonus 

Issue 
20000 2000% 20000 2000% 

 At the end of the year   21,000 0.40% 21,000 0.40% 

*Other directors and KMP’s do not have any shareholding in the company as on 31.03.2018 



 

 

 

 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. 

Particulars 
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits 

Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i)   Principal Amount 3,28,87,442.22 - - 32,887,442.22 

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii)  Interest accrued but not 

due 
- - - 

 

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,28,87,442.22 - - 32,887,442.22 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

Addition 
    

Loan Taken 23,622,265.59 - - 23,622,265.59 

Interest On Loan 
 

- - 
 

Reduction 
    

Loan Repaid - - - - 

Net Change 23,622,265.59 - - 23,622,265.59 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 56,509,707.81 - - 56,509,707.81 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not 

due 
- - - 

 

Total (i+ii+iii) 56,509,707.81 - - 56,509,707.81 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 

Amount 



 

 

 

 

 

1. Gross salary 

 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

 

Arun Kumar 

 

 

2,600,000 

 

 

 

- 

Ajay Kumar 

 

 

2,600,000 

 

 

 

- 

Ashish Kumar 

 

 

2,600,000 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

7,800,000 

 

 

 

- 

2. Stock Option 

 

-   - 

3. Sweat Equity 

 

-   - 

4. Commission 

-   as % of profit 

-   others, specify… 

 

-   - 

5. Others, please specify (Medical 

Reimbursement) 

 

127,000 30,000 31,000 1,88,000 

6. Total (A) 

 

2,727,000 2,630,000 2,631,000 7,988,000 

 

 Ceiling as per the Act 

(As per Schedule V for Companies 

having Inadequate Profits) 

3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 9,000,000 in 

accordance to 

effective 

capital 
 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 

Amount 

 Independent Directors 

·  Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

·  Commission 

·  Others, please specify 

 

N/A N/A N/A N/A - 

 Total (1)      

 Other Non-Executive Directors 

·  Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

·  Commission 

·  Others, please specify  

 

N/A N/A N/A N/A - 

 Total (2) - - - - - 

 Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - - 

 Total Managerial Remuneration      



 

 

 

 

 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act      

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD 

 

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Sl. no. Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

  CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

 

 

 

 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 

section 

17(3) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

N/A 2,16,000 220,000 4,36,000 

2. Stock Option N/A N/A N/A - 

3. Sweat Equity N/A N/A N/A - 

4. Commission 

-   as % of profit 

- others, specify… 

N/A N/A N/A - 

5. Others, please specify     

6. Total - 2,16,000 220,000 4,36,000 

Type Section of the 

companies 

Act 

Brief 

description 

Details of Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 

imposed 

Authority[RD 

/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal made. If 

any(give details) 

A. Company 

Penalty Nil     

Punishment Nil     

Compounding Nil     

B. Directors 

Penalty Nil     

Punishment Nil     

Compounding Nil     

C. Other Officers In Default 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 By and on behalf of the Board 

Kumar Autocast Limited 

  

Dated: 29.06.2018 

Place:  Ludhiana 

 

                                                              

Ajay Kumar Sood                             Arun Kumar Sood    

DIN: 00685585                                  DIN: 00685937  

2086, Phase-1, Urban,                    2086, Phase-1,Urban 

Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana          Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Penalty Nil     

Punishment Nil     

Compounding Nil     



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE’II’ 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 

length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 
 

1. Name (s) of the related party   1. NIL 

 
Nature of Relationship None 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction None 

3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction NIL 

 

4. Amount (In Lakhs) N.A. 

 
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

 

N.A. 

 

6. Date of approval by the Board  

 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 
 

1. Name (s) of the related party   1. Kumar Exports (UNIT-1) 

Nature of Relationship Associate Firm 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchases/Labour Job 

3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction Ongoing 

 

4. Amount (In Rs.) Rs. 513.45/- Lakhs 

 

5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

i) Purchase of Casting and 

Forging Materials 

ii) Labour Job of metal forging 

parts. 

6. Date of approval by the Board 26.04.2017 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars Details 
 

1. Name (s) of the related party   1. Kumar Exports 

Nature of Relationship Associate Firm 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sales 

3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction Ongoing 

 

4. Amount (In Rs.) Rs. 2519.99 Lakhs 

 

5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

Sales of Casting and Forging Materials 

6. Date of approval by the Board 26.04.2017 

 

 

By and on behalf of the Board 

Kumar Autocast Limited 

  

Dated: 29.06.2018 

Place:  Ludhiana 

 

           

Ajay Kumar Sood                             Arun Kumar Sood    

DIN: 00685585                                  DIN: 00685937  

2086, Phase-1, Urban,                    2086, Phase-1,Urban 

Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana          Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE ’III’ 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014] 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 

Kumar Autocast Limited continued to emphasize on the conservation and optimal utilization of energy in 

manufacturing unit of the Company. The energy conservation measures Implemented during FY 2018 are 

listed below: 

• Maintenance of the machines as per schedule. 

• Lights in the Factory area are switched off whenever not required. 

• Energy audit is conducted and recommendations are implemented. 

2. Additional Investments & Proposals, if any, being implemented for Reduction of Consumption 

of Energy: 

The company continued its efforts towards effective utilization of energy for reduction in power 

consumption. The Company is constantly exploring the use of alternate sources of energy that are 

commensurate with the scale of present operations and the type of products being manufactured.  

3.  The capital investment on energy conservation equipments; 

During the year under review, there was no capital investment on Energy Conservation Equipments. 

      Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy: 

Particulars  2017-18 2016-17 

POWER CONSUMPTION   

Units Purchased (KWH)    73,92,773 76,73,323 

Amount (Rs.) 54,706,527.85 5,92,25,382.86 

Average Rate Per Unit (Rs.) 7.40 7.71 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 

• Imparting training to personnel in various manufacturing techniques by experts. 

(2) Benefits derived like Product Improvement, Cost Reduction, Product Development or  



 

 

 

 

 

Import Substitution as a result of above efforts: 

• Increase productivity. 

• Power saving. 

• Manpower cost reduced. 

• Raw materials cost reduction. 

• Production wastage reduced. 

(3) Information regarding technology imported during the last 3 years 

• The Details of Technology Imported                     -  NIL 

• The Year of Import                           - Not Applicable 

• Whether Technology Has been Fully Absorbed        - Not Applicable 

• If Not Fully Absorbed, Areas Where Absorption      - Not Applicable 

has not taken place and the reasons thereof. 

(4) Expenditure on Research and Development 

During the year under review the company did not incurred any expenses on Research and Development. 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 During the year under review the company has earn the foreign exchange, the details of the same is 

described in the financial statements. 

  

By and on behalf of the Board 

Kumar Autocast Limited 

  

Dated: 29.06.2018 

Place:  Ludhiana 

 

 

           

Ajay Kumar Sood                             Arun Kumar Sood    

DIN: 00685585                                  DIN: 00685937  

2086, Phase-1, Urban,                    2086, Phase-1,Urban 

Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana          Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE ‘IV’ 

Form No. MR-3 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018. 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

 

The Members, 

Kumar Autocast Limited  

C-179, Focal Point 

Phase VI, 

LUDHIANA,  

Punjab (India). 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices made by Kumar Autocast Limited (hereinafter called the 

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the 

company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:      

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder - not 

applicable during the audit period 

 

 (iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 (v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) :- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; – Not applicable during the audit period. 

 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992;  

 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009;  

 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; – Not applicable during the audit period. 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008;  

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; – 

Not applicable during the audit period.  

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; – Not 

applicable during the audit period. And 

 

(i)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; –  

 

 

(vi)    Other Applicable  laws. 

 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company & its Officers for system and 

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts as Environmental 

Laws & Labour Laws. 

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:- 

 (i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s). 

 

 (ii)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors/members/shareholders to schedule the General Meetings, 

Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least Twenty One days in advance, and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

We further report that, during the year, following matters are been taken up; 

 

i) Company has allotted 4,940,000 Equity shares via Bonus Issue at a ratio of (1:20) i.e in the 

proportion of 20 (Twenty) new Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for every 1 (One) Equity 

Share of Rs. 10/- each held by shareholder as on the Record Date.  

 

ii) Company has made an application for Direct Listing before the Metropolitan Stock 

Exchange of India Ltd (MSEI), consequently stock exchange has admitted the 5187000 

Equity Shares of the company for direct listing w.e.f 1
st
 of March, 2018 vide circular number 

MSE/LIST/6063/2018 dated 27
th
 of February, 2018. 

 

iii) The Company has got the listing approval from Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd 

on 1
st
 of September, 2018. After the date of listing with the stock exchange the company has 

started making the requisite disclosures to the Stock Exchange. The company was not able 

to comply with Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) 

for the period (01.04.2017 – 01.03.2018) as the same were not applicable during the said 

period. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 

as part of the minutes. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

Place: Ludhiana                                                                                              

          Date:  29.06.2018                                                               : 

            Sd/- 

                   Signature  

         Kiranpreet Kaur 

Kiranpreet & Associates 

 FCS No. 44647 

CP No. 16428 

 

 Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 

an integral part of this report. 



 

 

 

 

 

  LIST OF LABOUR LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS WHICH HAVE BEEN 

VERIFIED DURING AUDIT PERIOD 

 

 List of Labour Laws 

 

 Factories Act, 1948 

 Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

 Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948 

 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1972 

 The Apprentices Act, 1961 

 Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

 

 List of Environmental Laws 

 

 Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

Annexure: -A 

 

29.06.2018 

The Members, 

Kumar Autocast Limited  

C-179, Phase VI, Focal Point 

LUDHIANA 

Punjab (India). 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company. 

 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc and we have relied on such representation for giving our report. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test 

basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

Place: Ludhiana                                                                                                                                                                                   

Date:  29.06.2018                                                                                         Signature: Sd/- 

                                                                                                         (Kiranpreet Kaur) 

                                                                            FCS No. - 44647 

                                                                         CP No. - 16428 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE ‘V’ 

 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 

 

1. PREFACE: 

 

   Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 6 of the Companies 

(Meeting of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, the Nomination and Remuneration committee 

of the Board of the Company has formulated a policy to decide the criteria for the appointment and 

for the remuneration to the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The Policy 

also aims to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a competitive and global markets scenario 

which is formulated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting 

held on 24.12.2014. 

   Produced here below is the “Nomination &Remuneration Policy” of the Company in compliance 

with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the object as mentioned herein. 

 

2. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE: 

 

a) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to Board their appointment 

and removal. 

b) To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director. 

c) To recommend to the Board remuneration policy related to remuneration of Directors (Whole 

Time Directors, Executive Directors etc), Key Managerial Personnel and other employees while 

ensuring the following:- 

• That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully. 

• That relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks. 

• That remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves 

a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance 

objectives appropriate of the working of the company and its goals. 

-To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors and the Board. 

-To devise a policy on Board diversity. 

 

3. MEMBERSHIP: 

 



 

 

 

 

 

a). The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being 

Independent.  

b) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting. 

c) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

d) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

 

4. CHAIRMAN: 

 

a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 

b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a 

Chairman of the Committee. 

c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose 

one amongst them to act as Chairman. 

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual 

General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries. 

 

5. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS: 

 

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 

 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS: 

 

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is 

discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings 

of the Committee. 

 

7. SECRETARY: 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 

 

8. VOTING: 

 

a) Decisions of the Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and voting 

and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

 

9. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING: 

 



 

 

 

 

 

The minutes of all the proceedings of all meetings must be signed by the Chairman of the Committee 

at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board 

meetings. 

 

10. EFFECTIVE DATE & AMENDMENTS: 

 

This policy will be effective from 24.12.2014 and may be amended subject to the approval of Board of 

Directors. 

 

By and on behalf of the Board 

Kumar Autocast Limited 

  

 

 

 

            

Ajay Kumar Sood                              Arun Kumar Sood 

      (W.T Director)                          (Managing Director) 

                   DIN: 00685585                                    DIN: 00685937 

                                                                2086, Phase-1, Urban Estate,                     2087, Phase-1, Urban           

Dugri, Ludhiana, 141003           Estate, Dugri, Ludhiana, 141003 

  



 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE ‘VI’ 

 

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures 

 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 

AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 

 

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company 

Secretary during the Financial Year 2017-18, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 

remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 and the comparison of 

remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as 

under: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director/ 

KMP and 

Designation  

Remuneration of 

Director / KMP 

for the Financial 

Year 2017-18 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

% Increase 

in 

Remunerati

on in  the 

Financial 

Year 2017-

18 

Ratio of 

Remuneration of 

each Director / to 

median 

remuneration of 

employees 

Comparison of the 

Remuneration of the 

KMP against the 

performance of the 

Company 

1. Arun Kumar 

Sood, 

Executive 

Director   

27.27 31.73% 18.2:1 

Profit before interest, 

depreciation and tax 

increased by 14.58% and 

profit after tax increased 

by 27.86% in financial 

year 2017-18. 

2. Ashish Kumar 

Sood, 

Executive 

Director     

26.31 27.22% 18.2:1 

3. Ajay Kumar 

Sood, 

Executive 

Director     

26.30 26.19% 18.2:1 

4. Kamalinder 

Kumar Singla, 

Non- 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

- - - - 

5. Ramesh 

Kumar 

Sharma, Non- 

Executive 

Independent 

- - - - 



 

 

 

 

 

Director 

6. Jatinder 

Kumar Malik, 

Non- 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

- - - - 

7. Lalit Kumar 

Jha 

(CFO) 

218,000 - 1.7:1 Profit before interest, 

depreciation and tax 

increased by 14.58% and 

profit after tax increased 

by 27.86% in financial 

year 2017-18. 

8. Pranav 

Khanna 

Company 

Secretary 

216,000 - 1.7:1 

 

 
   

* Details not given as Mr. Kamalinder Kumar Singla, Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma and Mr. Jatinder 

Kumar Malik were appointed as Independent Directors and no such sitting fee is paid to attend the 

meetings. 
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Independent Auditor's Report

Tn the Members of KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMI']IED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS nnancial statements of Kumar Autocast

Limited ('the Company'), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at N{atch 31, 2018, the

Statemeot of Profit and Loss, including the statemeot oi Other Comptchensive Income,

the Cash Fiorv Statcment aod the Statemeot ofChanges in Equity for the year theo ended,

and a summary ofsignificant accounting policies and othet explanatory infornation (heteio

aftct rcfcrrcd to as "Financial Statenrents')

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is tesponsible for the mattcrs stated in Section 134(5)

of the Companies Act, 2013 ("tl-re AcC') with iespect to the ptepatation of these Fioancial

Statements rhat give a true aod fair view of the Financial Position, Financial Petformance

including other Comptehensir.e Income, Cash Flou.s and Changes in Equiq, of the

Companv in eccordaoce with accounting ptinciples genereily acceptcd in India, iocluding

the Indian Accounting Standards (nd AS) speciEcd under section 133 of the Act., tead

with the Companics (Indian Accouoting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This

tespoosibility also includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance v,'rth

the provisions of the Act for saleguarding ofthc asscts ofthe Compaoy and for preveotirrg

and detccting frauds aod other irregularities; selection and application of apptopriate

accounting poJicies; making judgments and estrmates that ate teasonable and prudent; and

t}le design, implementation and maintenaoce of adequate iotetnal financial conttol that

were opetating effectively fot eosuting the acculacy and completeness of the rccounring

records, relevant to the preparation aod presentltion of the Financial Statemcnts that give

a ttue and fat vierv aod arc free ftom matedal misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud ot ertor.

Auditor's Responsibitry

Our responsibiJitl is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on out
audit.

We have taken into accouflt the ptovisions of the Act, the accounting aod euditing

standards and mattets which ate required to be jacluded in thc audit teport under the

-lr- l'rtrir. !,r -i!;f Lrri,r.i t.r_l:,., l;'1111
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issued by the lnstitute
ptovisioos of the Act and the Rules made theteundet. \(e jonducted out audit of the

Financial Statements in accotdance with the Standards

of Charteted Accountants of India, as specified und of the Act. Those



Staodatds require that we comply \rith erhical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain teasonable assureoce abour whether the Finrncial Statements are flee from
mateiial misstatement.

An audit involves performing ptocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts afld
disclosutes in the Financial Statcments. The procedutes selected depend on the auditolrs
judgment, including the assessment of the dsks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fiaud or etroi. In makiog those risk assessments, the auditor
considets intetnal fioaflcial control relevaflt to the Company's preparation ofthe Financial
Statements that give a true and fait view in order to design audit ptocedwes that are
apptoptiate in the circumstaoces. An audit also includes evaluating the apptoptiateness of
accounting policies used and the teasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directots, as well as evaluating the overall ptesentation of the Financial
Statements. \Ve believe that the audit evidence we hrve obtained is suf6cient and
appropiiate to plovide a basis for out audit opinion on the Fioarcial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanacions grven
to us, the Financial Statements give the infotmation required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a ttue and fat vierv in conformity with the accounting ptinciples genetally
accepted in lodia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at Match 31, 2018, its Ptofit
including Other Comprehensive Iocome, its Cash Florvs and the Changes io Equity for the
year ended on that date.

Other Mattets
The compatative financial infotmatioa of the Company lor the year eoded March 31, 2017
and the transition date opening balance shcet as at April 1, 2016 ptepated io accordance
rvith Ind AS, included in these Financial Statements, har.e been audited by the ptedecessor
auditot u,ho had audited the 0naocial statemeots fot the relevant periods. The tepott of
the ptedecessot auditor oo the compatative fiaancial infotmation and the opening balance
sheet dated 22d May 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion.

Repot on Othet Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order,2016 ("the Otder-) issued
by the Centtal Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
t}le Act, rve give in the Anoexure A a statemeflt on the matters specified in
paragtaphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

2. As tequited by section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the iaformation and explanatioos which to the

best ofout kaowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purpose ofout audiq

b) In our opinion, proper books of accouot as required by lalv have been kept by
those books;

'-/9
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the Compaoy so far as it appeats from our



c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Pro6t and-Loss includilg the Statement of
Other Compreheosive Income, the Cash flo* Statement and Sratement of
Changes in Equity dealt vith by this Report are in agreemeflt.$,ith the books of
account;

")

d) In out opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statemeots comply with the Accounting
Standatds specified undet section 133 ofthe Act, read with Companies (ndian
Accounting Standatds) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis ofwtitten reptesentations teceived from the directots as on March
31, 2018, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the &ectors
is disqualified as on Match 31, 2018, from being appointed as a directot in terms
of sectioo 164 (2) of the Act;

With tespect to the adequacy of the intctnal financial controls ovet Enaocial
tepotting ofthe Company with refereoce to these Financial Statements and the
operatiog effectiveness of such controls, refer to out separate Report in
'1\nncxue B" to this report;

With tespect to the othet matters to be included io the Auditor's Repott in
accotdance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditots) Rules, 2014, in
out opinion and to the best of out informat-ior and accotding to the
explanations given to us:
(i) The Compaoy has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

financial position in its Financial Statemerts. (I{efet Note 26.1)
(ri) The Company has made provision, as tecluired under the applicable law

or accounting standards, for matetial foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracrs including derir arive conuacrs.

(*) Thete were flo amounts which rvere requited to be transfered to the
Investor Educatioo and Protection Fund by the Company.

c)

For Ashwani & Associates
Charteied Accountants
FRN:000497N

Place: Ludhiana
Date: June 29, 2018

Adi
Paftner
Membership No.: 506955



The Annexure A refeued to in paragraph 1 under_the heading ..Report on other
legal and regulatory iequirements" of Out Reportif even date to the members of
Kumat Autocast Limited on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31.t
Match, 2018

Oo the basis of such checks, as, we considered appropdate, and, according to the
infotmation and explanations given to us during the course ofout audit, we teport that

1. (a) The Company is maiotaining proper tecords shorving full particulats includiog
quafltitative details and situation of &xed assets.

@) The Compaoy has a regular programrnc of physical vedficatioo of the fi-xed

assets at leasonable interals. In accoldance with this programme, ceftain 6xed
assets wele veriEed duting the year, and, no material discrepancies rvere ooticed oo
such vetification.

(c) The Company has all the otiginal tide deeds ofimmovable properties in its own
name ,

2. The inventory has been physically verified by the management duting the yeat. In
out opinion, the frequency ofvetification is reasonable, and, the drscrepancies
noticed on physical verification ofinventoty were flot material.

3. As per the infotmation furnished, company hes not granted any secuied or
unsecured loans other than Trade Advances, to companies, finns, Limited
LiabiJity Partnetships or othet parties coveted in the register maintaioed undet
section 189 ofthe Compznies Act, 2013, thetefote flo comments is called for.

4.

5.

Accotding to the infotmation and explanations giveo to us, the Company has not
given any loans, purchased investment, given guarantees and security to tle patties
coveted under sectioo 185 or 188 dwing the ycat. Thetefote, the ptotision ofclause
36v) is nor applicable co rJT c Companl.

The Company has not accepted aay deposits ftom the Public. Therefote, the
provisions of Clause 3(v) of the order is not appJicable to tle Compaoy.

Accotding to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
company the provisioo of section 148(1) of the Act is oot appJ.icable to the

Compaoy.

7. (a) According to the infotmation and explanations given to us and the records of
ny is generally regular irr

=7 lv*l \s

J*",

the Company examined by us, in our opinl



depositing the uodisputed statu.ory dues includi;g-providcot fuo{ employees, state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, sefvice tax, exc'ise duq,, customs duty, value added
tax, cess and otler matedal statutory dues rvith the apptopdate authorities.

(t) According to the information and explanations given to us and the recotds of
the Company examined by usJ there aie flo dues of income-tax, cess, sales tax,
seivice tax, value added tax) customs duty and excise dury vhich have not been
deposited on account of a dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in tepayment of loans ot botrorving to a financial
institution, governmeflt, Bank or dues to debenture holders.

9. In out opinion, and accotding to the information and explanatioos giveo to us, the
Compaoy has not raised anv mooey by way of initial public offer or filrthet public
offcr (Iocluding Debt instuments). The term Ioans outstandiflg at the beginning of
the yeat, and, the new term loans taised during the year, we!e, applied for the
purposes fot, rvhich, they were obtained.

10. Duting the couise of our examination of the books and records of the Company
cartied out in accordance with the generally accepted audit-ing practices io India,
and accordirg to the information and explanations given to us, we have, neither,
come acioss any instance of ftaud by the Company, or, any fraud on the company
by its officets ot employees, noticed ot reported duting the yeat, oot, have we beeo
infonned of such case by the management.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of
account velified by us, the managetial remuneration has been paid ot provided in
accordance with the tequisite approvals maodated by the provisions ofsection 197

read rvidr scheduie V to tie Companies Acl

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the ptovision ofclause 3(xii) is
not applicable to the Companv.

13. According to the infotmation and explanations given to us and based on our
examination ofthe records ofthe Company, transaction with the ielated panies are

in compJiance with sections 177 aod 188 of Compxnies Act,2013, where applicable

and details of such ttansactions have been disclosed i/"*a\Nf/ l-0Al \f
f,\rnr ooorsn[

A"--#

requited by the applicable accounting standatds.

statemeflts as



14. Accotdiog to the records of the company examioed by us, thc company has not
made aoy private placement or prefetential allotment of shates.

15. Io out opinion, and according to the informadon and cxplanations given to us, the
Company has not entered iflto aoy flon-cash taosactiofl with d ectots, or, persons

connected vith them.

16. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not tequired to be tegistered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank
oflndia Act, 1934.

For Ashwani & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000497N

Place: Ludhiana
Date: June 29,2018 Membership No.: 506955
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Annexure- B
To the Independent Auditor's Report on the Stddalone Financial Statements
of Kumar Autocast Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ('lhe AcC,)

We have audited the internal Enancial controls ovet finaocial repoting of I(umat Autocast
Limited ("thc Company') as of tr{atch 31, 2018, in conjunction rvith our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year eoded on that date.

Managementrs Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's manegement is responsible for establishing and maintaioing intemal
finencial conttols based on the internal contol over finaocial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Ioternal Financial Conttols Ovet Financial Repoting issued
by the Institute of Chatteted Accouotants of India. I'hcse responsibilities include the
desrgn, implementation and mainteoance of adequate intetnal financial contols that wete
operating effectively fot ensudng the ordedy and ef6cient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
pteventioo and detection of frauds and errots, the accuracv and completeness of the
accounting recotds, and the timely prepatation of teliable financial infotmatioo, as required
undet the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Out tesponsibiliry is to express an opioion on the Company's intemal {inancial contols
over financial teporting with reference to t-hese f1nanciel statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordarce rvith the Guidance Note on Audit of lotemal
Finaocial Coottols Over Financial Repotting (the "Guidance Note') and the Standards on
Auditing as specified uoder section 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial conrols and, both issued by the Institute of
Chattered Accouritants oflndia. Those Standatds aad the Guidance Note require that u,e
comply with ethical requiiements and plan and perfotm thc audit to obtaia reasooable
assurance about whethel adequate inteinal financial conttols over Enancial teporting with
refeleoce to these Fioancial Statements rvas established and maintained and ifsuch controls
operated effectively io all material tespects.

Out audit involves petfotming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the ioternal financial controls system ovet frrancial reporting with reference to these
fiflancial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial
conttols ovet fioancial teporting included obtaining ins of internal Enancial
controls over fioaocial tepotting rvith reference to tements, assessing the



risk thar a marerial rveakness exists, and tescing and er_Juaring the
effecdveness of internal control br'ed on the asses'sed risk. The

design and operating
procedutes selected

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessmett of the risks of material
misstatement of the finaflcial statementsJ whethet due to fraud or ettor.

!7e believe that the audlt evidence rve have obtaited is sufficient and approptiate to provide
a basis for out qualified audit opinion on the intetoal fiflancial controls ove! financial
reporting rvith reference to these Fiflancial Statements.

Meaning oflnternal Financial Conrols Ovet Financial Reporting qrith refelence to
these Financial Statements

A compan/s internal financial control ovei froancial tepotting with refereoce to these
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide re,rsoflable assutance regaidiog the
reliability of financial tepotting and the prepatation of financial statemeots for external
putposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pdnciples. A company's
intemal financial contiol ovei iinancial reporting with reference to these Financial
Statements includes those policies aod procedutes that (1) peftain to the mainteflance of
tecotds that, in reasoorble detai! accurately and fairly teflect the tansactiors and
dispositions of thc assets of the company; (2) ptor.idc leasoruble assurance that
ttaosactions are recorded as necessaiy to permit prep,uation of financixl ststements in
accordance rvith genetally accepted accountiog principles, and that receipts and
expeflditues of the compnoy ate being made only in accoidaoce vith authotisations of
management and diiectots of tie company; and (3) provide teasonable assurance regatding
prevention or timely detectioo of unauthorised acquisition, use, ot disposition of the
companyrs assets that could have a material effect on thc financial statemeats.

Inherent Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
urith reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inhereot limitations of internal fioancial coottols over financial reporting
with refetence to these Financial Statements, ilrcluding the possibility of collusion or
improper managemeflt oveffide of contols, matedal misstatements due to errot ol ftaud
may occur and not be detected. AIso, projections ofany evaluatioo of the ioternal frnaflcial
conuols over financial tepotiog rvith refercnce to these Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the dsk that the intemal financial contol over financial teporting
vith refeteoce to these Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, oi that the degree of compliance with the policies or ploceduJes may
detetiorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of out infotmation and accordiog to the explanarion given to
us, the company has, in all matedal respects, afl adequate inter:nal finaflcial controls system
over f,nancial repoting and such ioternal financial conttol over Errancial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31,2018, based on the intetnal control over financial
reporting cdteria established by the compaoy considcring the essential components of
internal cootrol stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Intetnal Financial Cortrols Ovet
Financial Repotting issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants of Ifldia.

For Ashwani & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Ludhiana
Date: June 29, 2018

Adi

Membership No.: 506955



KUMARAUTOCAST LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2OlB

NOTE I AHT
I lr.og.:ore 31 03.2017

I

(1)

t2)

(1)

t2)

s
N

lAssErs

(a) Propedy Ptanr and Equpmenr
(b) CapilarWorr in Proo@ss

(lii) Olhe. Financiat Assets
le) Derieed rax Assels {Net)
(r) OlherNonCurcntAssels

(ii) I€de Reeivabte

lc)

(ii) Cash and Cash equivatenrs
(v) Other safk Baranes
(v) Other Ftnanciat Assels
Curenl Tat Assers (Nel)
Non C0renl Assels Held ForSate

:QUIIY & LIABILITIES
:quity

-iabilities
Non Curent Liabitittes

, Delefied Tar Liabilities (Ne0
, Olher Non Curenl Liabitities

(ii) OIher Firancia Ltabtfties

, other curient Liab tities

TOTAL
igrif canl Accounting Poricies

otes forming part olAccounrs

l0
11

t3

15

16
'17

18

2

4,t6,Os

1S7:79

362. 62

53.45

285.06

53.88

414.O7

100,02

,,073.60
389.39

2.73

13.15

120 37

942.58

3.62

62 81

96 71

1,054.39
72 50

3.37

21 23

r,578,89 1.223.7A 1,21a,21

2,066.68 1,639.35

518.70

'129.36

21
417.76

24 7A

736 73
94a_56 442,46

49,19

12,98

77.A2

17 AA

26.16

35

14 59
22.19

98.60 121.35

515.42
261.71
173.15

250.22
195 65
157 7a

420 23
183.19
92.22

1,019.51 675.53

639,35 '1.592.1A

As per our reoorl ofeven date atiached

nd on behatf of ao.rd ot DibctoB

Mi l-t
ASHISH SOOD
DIRECTOR
DiN-00672179
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COMPANY SECRETARY

DATE | 29lnJune,2018



KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2Ol8

FOR THE YEAR Ei]DEO

3103201i

I

I

nt

INCOME

Revenue Fom Operalions

IOTAL REVENUE (I + II)

EXPENSES

cost of Materlats Consumed
Chaige in lnv€nlones ofFinished G@ds Work-in-

Excise Duty on sa6otgoois
Emp oyee Benefts Expenss

OeprecEIion and Amoniaton Expeise

TOTAL EXPENSES 0V)

Profit/(loss) berore erceptional items and iax from
continuins op€raiioB (lll-lv)

Profit/ (loss) berore laxrrom.ontinuing operations (V-

Prof iv (Loss) ror the Ye.r iiom conUnulng op€rations

Other Comp.ehensive lncomo

(A) llem ih.twill be eclassified to profitor loss

(B) ltoms lhat will not be reclassified lo protit or loss

Re-measuemenl qa ns (rosses) on defi n ed bonoft plans

OtherComprehensive lncomolorth. y.ar n€t of Tax

19

21

22

23

3

72

3,759.7'

3 755 55 3,685.54

2,120,10

35.53
?9.53

420,54
37,59

393.11

3.6{9.03 3,561.9!

146.52

1.47\

35.it

(2.13)

Tord comprehensive lncome lor iho Y.ar (tx.x)
(comprisi.s Prcfi v {Loss) and other comprehensive

E.rhingg perequlty share ol -t0.ach

Signiricant Accounting Pollcles
Noles formino o.rtof Account

106,10

2.O2

2.O2
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eacconpanyinq not€.@integralpartollhefinancialslatements

As per our repod ol €ven dale allached
FOR ASHWANI & ASSOCIATES
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR E'.IDED 313T MARCH, 2018

EQUITY

(A) Equitv Share Capital

Balance & At01,0a,20l6 24.7t

Balance as At 31,03.2017 24.T1

Eou ly share €oital/Bonus shares issued dunna rhe yeat

113.53 608.65 736,7a
81 83 81.83

olher @mprehensNe torthe year net of

Divdend ncludino dNidend dshbllion tax
1!3.53

P,orr(Loss) ror the oenod
Other@mprehensive for the year net of

14.6( 113.53 429.86

ignilicant Accounting Policies
oles roming part oi Accounts

2
26

re ammpanyng noles are integrd pan of the fi.a.ca statemenls
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31ST MARCH,2O18

CASH FLOW STATEMENf FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31tIMARCH,2O13
(Allamounts ln Rupees, unless otheNi3e st.led)

{s)

(c)

Cash lloG lrcm opeating aciiviiies

(Prcrl)/Loss on sle of Fixed A*el
lnlerest and fi name charces

Remeasuemenl ol aclu algaln/l6s
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(hcrease)/dffiase n lrade re@vables
(lncrease) / dse6ee n otherrnancia assels {excudii! advance lax)
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226,14
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Cash and cash equivalents. closlnq b.lance

Notes t cash tlw statoment:
Cash and esh equ valents include:

Cash and cash equivalents al tho €nd ol lhe year
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31,2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

KumarAutocast Limited ('the Company') is a public limited Company domiciled in lndia
and incorporated on January 9, 1985 underthe provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956
having its registered office C-179, Focal Point, Phase Vl, Ludhiana Pb 141003. The
Company is listed on lretropolitan Stock Exchange (IISE). The Company is engaged
in the manufacturing of General Casting of Steel for Auto Parts. The Company's
manufacturing facilities are located at Focal Point, Ludhiana, Punjab. The Financial
statements were authorized by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with
resolution passed on June 29th, 2018.

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPRATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with lndian
Accounting Standards (lND AS) notifled under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the section '133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (lndian GMp). These financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 20'18 are the first financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IND AS notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015. Refer Note no 32(17)for information on how the Company adopted
lnd-AS. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following assets and liabilities:

i) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees ('lNR') and all values are
rounded to nearest lacs (lNR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curent/non-
cuffent classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be rdalized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or



All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- lt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- lt is held primarily for purpose of trading

- lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the

reporting Period.

All other liabilities are classified as non current

Deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and

liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle.

2.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Under the previous GAAP (lndian GMP), all assets were carried in the balance sheet at

cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any' On the

date of transition to IND AS, all tangible assets other than Land and Capital work in

progress have been measured at fair value and same has been considered as deemed

costasatApril O l , 2016 (date of transition) The Company has applied principles of lnd

AS '16 Property, Plant and Equipment retrospectively from date of acquisition in respect of

Land and Capital work in progress and considered the same as deemed cost in

accordance with lnd AS 101 First Time adoption.

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, Iess

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises

of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly athibutable

and related to acquisition and installation ofthe concerned assets and are further adjusted

by the amount of CENVAT credit and VAT credit availed wherever applicable' When

significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the

Company depreciates them separatety based on their respective useful lives Likewise,

when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrylng amount of the

plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied' All other

repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present

value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in

the cosi of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met'

An item of property, plant and equipment and any signiflcant part initially recognised is

derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its

use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the aarrying amount of the asset) is

included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.



Capitalwork- in- progress includes cost ofproperty, plant and equipment under installation

/ under development as at the batance sheet date. /

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
aPProPriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-

line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management and in the

manner prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act 2013.

2.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following

initial recognition, intangibte assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. lnternally generated intangibles, excluding

capitalised development cost, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected

in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working

condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. lntangible

assets with llnite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The

amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful

life is reviewed at least at the end ofeach reporting period. Changes in the expected useful

life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the

asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate and

are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible

assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense

category consistent with the function of the intangible assets lntangible assets with

indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either

individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is

reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable lf

not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off'

lntangible assets with finite useful tife are amortised on a straight line basis over their

estimated useful life

2.5 IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an

asset may be impaired. lf any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an

asset is;equired, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount' An asset's

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value

less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate c that are largely



independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverade amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. lf no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses
including impairment on inventories are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount ofthe asset over
its remaining useful life.

2.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss)

- Those measured at amortised cost

lnilial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case offlnancial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following
categories:

- Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FWPL)

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTocl)

- Debt instruments at amorlised cost

- Equity instruments

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely
in the statement of profit and loss(i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in
other comprehensive income(i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). For
investment in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
equity instruments at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the conditions are met:



a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the debt instrument to collect the

contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrumd{t priorto its contractual maturity to

realize its fair value changes).

b) Cash flow characte.istics test: The contractual terms ofthe debt instrument give rise

on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial

assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR)

method. Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of ElR. EIR is the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the

expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms ofthe flnancial instrument but

does not consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization is included in finance

income in proflt or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or

loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
following criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and for selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test The contractual terms ofthe debl instrument give rise

on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at

each reporting date at fair value- Fair value movements are recognised in the other

comprehensive income (OCl), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment

gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognised in statement

of profit and loss. On derecognition of asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised

in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit & loss. lnterest earned whilst

holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method

Debt instruments at FWPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which

does not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FWPL. A gain

or loss on a Debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FWPL and is not a part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in the period in which it arises.

lnterest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 1Og are measured at fair value Equity

instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an

acquirer in a business combination to which IND AS103 applies are classified as at FWPL.

fl6$
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For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an i on to present



in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company
makes such election on an instrument-by-instrumentfasis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

lf the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCl. There is no
recycling ofthe amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured atfairvalue with allchanges recognised
in the Profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the Company's
statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third pa(y under a "pass through" arrangement and either;

(a) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
or

(b)the Company has retained the contractual rightto receive the cash flows ofthe financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has

transfered substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the flnancial assets.

ln such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe ownership of the financial assets, the financial

asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all

risks and rewards of ownership of tfle financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised

ifthe Company has not retained control ofthe financial asset. Where the Company retains

control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial assets

ln accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model

for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following flnancial asset and

credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets measured atfairvalue through other comprehensive income (FWOCI);

The Company follows "simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables:

- All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within of IND AS 17



Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather,

it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lilEtime ECLS at each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition. the Company uses a provision matrix to determine

impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is

based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable

and is adjusted for forward looking estimales. At every reporting date, the historical

observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are

analyzed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the

Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since

initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to

provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL

is used. lf, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there

is no Ionger a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company

reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on '12- months ECL.

(ii) Financial liabilities:

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or toss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. the Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including

bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money, liabilities towards services'

sales incentives and other payables.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior

to the end ofllnancialyear which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually

paid within '120 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current

liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are

recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR

method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss include flnancial liabilities held for

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for

the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss

are designated as such at the initial date of recognition' and only if the criteria in IND AS

109 are aatisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable

to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCl. Thes-e gains/ loss are not

subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, th9@@mav transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes /"$fr#UAP\\uch liability are



recognised in the statement of profit or loss. the Company has not designated anyfinancial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss. -'

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised atfairvalue, net oftransaction cost incurred. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amodised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted fortransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortization.

De.ecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an exisling financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially diflerent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financiat assets which
are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the buslness model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
lf the Company reclassifles financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively

from the reclassification date which is the first day ofthe immediately next reporting period

following the change in business model. The Company does not re previously

recognised gains. losses (including impairment gains or losses) or i
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2.8 INVENTORIES

a) Basis olvaluation i '

i) lnventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value after providing cost ofobsolescence, if any. However, materials and other items held
for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The
comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

ii) lnventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value.

b) Method ofValuationi

i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost
method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (otherthan those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an
appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and excise duty as
applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of
production facilities. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

iii) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using First ln First Out (FIFO) method
and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

iv) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 TAXES

Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a) Current Tax

i) Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the lncome Tax Act,
196'l and the lncome Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in lndia by
using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

ii) Current income tax relating to item recognised outside the statement of profit and loss
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI
o. directly in equity

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deducti differences,

/.r/ r
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the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax I tax assets



are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

which th; deductible temporary differences, and the cafry forward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets

are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised tothe extent that it has become

probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply

in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date'

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is

recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income

or inlquity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in OCI or direct in equity.

Deferred Tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes IVAT credit available as

an asset onty to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay

normal income tax during the specifled period, ie. the period for which MAT credit is

allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at

each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have

convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period

2.,I0 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking

into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties

collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is

probabte that the economic beneflts will flow to the Company and the revenue can be

reliabty measured, regardless ofwhen the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed are

inclusive of Excise Duty, and net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, value added taxes

and amount collected on behalf of third parties.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and is

measured atfairvilue ofconsideration received/receivable, net of returns and allowances'

discounts, votume rebates and cash discounts. Revenue is usually recognised when it is

probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,

amount of revenue can be measured reliably and entity retains neither continuing

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold.

b) lnterest Income

lnterest lncome is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and the applicable interest rates and is disclosed in "other income"'

2.11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short-term obligations



Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be

settled wholly within twelve months after the end of th6 period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employee service upto the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. the liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by

Company. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation

on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date. The difference, if any, between

the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of

funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying

the discount rate to the net deflned benefit liability or asset. the Company recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in

statement of profit or loss:

1. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements

2. Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return

on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a coresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

b) Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense,

when an employee renders the related seNices. lf the contribution payable to scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as liability after deducting the contribution

already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services

received before the balance sheet date, then excesses recognised as an asset to the

extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

2,,I2 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government Grants, lf any are recognised at their fair value rdhen there is reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received, and all the attached conditions will be complied

with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic

basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts

over the expected useful life of the related asset.



When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are

recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit ofioss over the expected useful life

in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset

2.,I 3 SEGMENT ACCOUNTING:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the management. The Management monitors the operating results of all

strategic business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocaiion and performance assessment Segment performance is evaluated based on

profit and loss and is measured consistently with profit and loss in the financial statements'

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of

products/services- Further:

1 Segment revenue inctudes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to

the segment including inter-segment revenue.

2 Expenses that are directly identiflable with / allocable to segments are considered for

determining the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and

not allocable to segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

3 lncome which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is

included in unallocable income.

4 Segment results includes margins on inter-segment sales which are reduced in arriving

at the profit before tax of the Company.

5 Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective

segments. Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate

to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

6 Segment revenue resulting from transactions with otherbusiness segments is accounted

on the basis oftransfer price agreed between the segments Such transfer prices are either

determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated business

2.14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights

issue, share split, and reverse share split (consotidation of shares) that have changed the

number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share' the net profit or loss for the

period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity

shares

2.15 BORROWNG COSTS

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing

of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective inlerest rate'

,(f
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of timClo get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part ofthe cost ofthe respective asset. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expense in the period in which they occur.

2.16 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately
disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Company's financial performance. ltems
which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or losses
on disposal of investments of subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures and impairment
losses/write down in the value of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and significant disposal of fixed assets.

2.17 CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.18 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provisjon due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, wherethere is a liability
that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless
the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

2.,I9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair



value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) ln the principal market for asset or liability, or

(ii) ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

Afairvalue measurement of a non- flnancial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant

observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level l- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest Ievel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring

basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the

hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant

to fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets

and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability

and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I, 2018

1) nvenlcies & Trcd6 re@ivables ae hYpolhe*ted w th the b.nkarg againsl M* n! epllal I mits

2) TBde Reeivables are usually non nler*t bearing and aBon lEdeGmsor30 to 90 dav3

3)No TEde rseivables are dus rrcm d Elors or olher ofiicers oflhe oohpanv eilher seveE lv or lointv wilh anvother peen
4; There are io eslrlcton wi$ regard lo csh and €sh €luiva eols as $€ end of lhe repodinq pe.iod ad pnor penod ex€pl olheMis€ 3l'Gn

(Rs in Lacs

31.03.2013 01.04.2016

NOTE.4 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

SecurlY DePos ts

NOIE . 5 INVENTORIES

Finished Goods
Stoes&Spaes

NOIE 6TMDE RECEIVABLE

TEde recelvsblei/om Related parlies -considered Good

Trade receivabLe - considered Good

Trade receivable - Consideed doubllul

Lessr P.ovis on for doubtful debts

7 CASH & BANK BALANCE

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bara.ces wlth scheduled Banks

[Iargin Money Oeposit agaLnst bank guarentee

NOTE

NOTE . 8 CURRENT IAX ASSETS {NET)

Advance Payment oI Tar

NOTE . 9 OTHER CURREN' ASSETS

Other AdYanceB
Advances ior Male al& seNlces
OlherAdvan@s

Prepaid expenses
Balanc.. with Statutory/Governme.l Authoritles

s€ruice Tax GST and VAT

53.45 58.88

53 45 5A.aa

55.32
22.60

3.56

38.89

4.81
29.39

31.55
52.80
336
9.00

100,02 120.31

801.55 545.65
396 93

577.23
177.16

1,073.60 942.58 1,054.39

1,073.60 1,054.39

2,44

386.30

o.1t

0.04

94.26

0.10

0.73

339_33

2.73 362 3.37

2.73 362

o.ro

37.69
5.53

3.90

?.54
a.11

0.69

3.12
435

13,15 62.81 2123

13.15 62.81

G#



KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF IHE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEO MARCH 3I,2013
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2018

31.03.2013

The amouni due lo M @ aid Small Enl€rpn$s as d€lined in lhe The Micro, SfiaLl and M€nium Enl€lpri*s Delelopment Act 2006" has ben detemin€d to lhe
enent such panes have been idenlifed on lhe basis of inlomatio n .vai abl€ wth the Company The disclosures relaling io Micrc and Smal Entee.ses as at 31st
firarch 2013 aE.s u^der

NOiE . 16 TMDE PAYABLE

Oulslandng dues to Micm & SmallEnlerpiss
Oulstandin! du€s to other than Micrc & Sma I Eite.pr ses

O The prncipalamounl rema nin! uipad to supp ieras al rhe e.d oflhe year

(Li) The inte@st due lhe@n Emaining unpaid 10 supp eras at the end olthe year
The amounl ollnteestdue and payab€ for th6 pedod ot de ay in makinq paym€ni (which
have been pa d bul beyond the appoinled day dunns the year) but w thout adding lhe

( ii) inle@st sreilled u.der this Acl
The amounl oi mterest a@ed dunng th6 year and rema nirc unpaid at th€.nd ol th€

1)T6depayabeincludeduetoeatedpanies022tae(March31,2017RsNi)(Apr 1 2016 Rs ND

2) TEdepayabesareunseuGdandar6usGllypadwithin30to90days

3) TEde payab e are non ntmesi bearinq

NOTE . 17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cureni Mat u dlies ol Long Tem oebt

NOTE . 13 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advanes ftom Cust.mars

Stalulory Du€s Payable

Empoyee Beneits Payab e



KUI\TAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
NOTES FORII4ING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

NorB: Elcis€ dury @I€den lrcm siomeB included in $les amounied l3 Rs 79 52laG (MaEh 2017Rs
la6 ( March 2017 Rs 3314 47 lacs)

I

NorE. 20 orHER rNcoME 
I

Pdio.5al.olc{edol',lsasse*r\€nl
llF€s'l_6re.1€Lrry oepos 

'osl 
Bi 

I
I

NOTE. 21 COST OF RAW i'ATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Malera Consumed

NOTE.22 CHAXGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,WORK]N.PROGRESS A STOCX-IN.TRADE

s.r€ or Prcducts net of Excis6 is Rg 3530.13

:,:1 ::1



NOTES

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 20I8

FOR IHE YEAR ENDEO

31.03.2013

NOTE. 23 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSES

Sal.ry Wag$ & Aonus

G€tuily Expefsee

Cont but on to PF & Oih6r Funds

St8fl W6lfa€ Eloen$s

NOTE

25 OTHER EXPENSES

Legai & Prciessiomt Charges

Trav€ linq & Convey8n@ (Othe6)

Lo$ on sa e ol lixad aesls

NO.rE

3f3.23

32.52 3t 95

34.35 35 62

79,33

49.76

44.64

23.22

21.39

18.14

t3.49

8.06

3_88

0.60

3,02

oJ7

13.87

62.24

21.53

12 a2

13 21

525

Aud itor Remun€ration



KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED, LUDHIANA.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note No. 26

26.1 COMMITMENTSANDCONTINGENCIES:

*Bank Guarantee given by the company to Environmental Engineers Punjab Pollution Control
Board, Ludhiana having amount of Rs.1.00 Lacs (Previous year Rs.1.00Lacs)

B) Commitments: NIL
C) Undrawn Committed borrowing facility:
The Company has availed working capital limits amounting to Rs 600 lacs ( March 31,2017 Rs
500 Lacs) (N4arch 31, 20'16 Rs 500 Lacs) from lolcl bank An amount of Rs 84.58 lacs ( l\rarch
31,2017 Rs 249.78 Lacs) ( April 1, 2016 Rs 131.24 Lacs) remain undrawn as at March 31,
2018.

D) Other Litigation: NIL
E) Leases: NIL
F) Contingent Asset: NIL

26.2 Disclosures pursuant to lnd AS-19 "Employee Benefits"(specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20'15) are given below:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Defined Benefit Plan
The employees' Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the
Company itself. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years
of service usually gets a gratuity on departure @ '15 days of last drawn salary for each
completed year of service. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit l\,Iethod, which recognizes each period of service as

Continoent liabilities lto the extent not orovided for ount Rs in Lacs
Padiculars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017 As at 01.04.2016
Liability towards Bank
against Bank
Guarantee availed'

1.00 '1.00

Others
Total 1.00 100

Rs in Lacs
Particulars Year ended

March 31.2018
Year ended

March 31.2017
Employer's Contribution towards Provident
Fund (PF)

7.38

Leave encashment 't1.45 10 63
Employer's Contribution towards Employee
State lnsurance (ESl)

13.08 11 .'15

,/;,kq



giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately
to build up the final obligation. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit
expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Reconciliation of o and closin balances of faia value of lan assets

bala sh

a) Reconciliation of oDenino and closinq balances of Defined Benefit obliqation
Year ended

March 31,2018
Year ended

March 3r.2017
Present value obligation as at beginning
of the vear

17.84 '14.59

lnterest cost 1.20 1.05
Current Service Cost 3.s1
Benefits Daid u.o2\ (2.58)
Remeasurement of (Gain)/Loss

- Exoerience Adiustment (2 04 0.99
- Difference in Present Value of Obliqation (0.09 o26
Present value of obligation as at close of
lhe vear

16.43 17.88

Year ended
March 31.2018

Year ended
March 31,2017

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

return on olan assets

Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other
comorehensive income
Return on plan assets excluding interest
income

Fair value of olan assets at vear end

cl Net defined benefit asseu {liabilitvl recoqnised in the balance sheet
Year ended

March 3'1.2018
Year ended

March 31,2017
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit oblioation 16.43 17 88
Amount recognised in Balance Shee! Asset /
(Liabilitv)

16.43 '17.88

d) tlet defined benefit expense (Recognised in the Statement of profit and loss for the

Year ended
March 31.2018

Year ended
March 31,2017

Current Service Cost 3.5'1 3.58
Net lnterest Cost 1.20 1.05



Net defined benefit expense debited to statement 4.71 453
of oroflt and loss

el Remeasurement loain)/ loss recoonised in other comotehensive ncome
Year ended
March 31,2018

Year ended
March 31 - 2017

Remeasurement of {Gain)/Loss
- Exoerience Adiustment (2.O4\ 0.99
- Difference in Present Vatue of Oblioation r0 09) o25
Recoqnised in other comprehensive income (2.13\

PrinctDal assumotions used in determinino defined benelit obliqatton
Year ended

March 3'1,2018
Year ended

March 3'1. 2017
Mortalitv Table IAL 2006-08 Ultimate IAL 2006-08 Ultimate
lmputed rate of lnterest (D) 7 .7Oo/. o.a. 7 .55o/. o.a.
lmouted rate of lnterest (lC) 7 .55Yo o.a. 7 .g0o/. o.a.
Salarv Escalation 7 .0Oo/o o.a. 7 .0oo/o o.a.
Attrition Rate 50.00% p.a. 50 00o/" o.a

1. The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after
taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including

Quantitative sensitivltv analvsis for siqnificant assumptions is as below
Year ended

March 3t- 2018
Year ended

March 31. 2017
lncrease / (decrease) on present value of defined
benefits oblioations at the end of the vear
Discount Rate
lncrease bv 1% r0 59) (0.71)

Decrease bv 'lyo 0.65 0.78

Salarv lncrease
lncrease bv 1 

0/6 0.65 078
Decrease bv '1 o/o (0.60) @.72)

Attrition Rate
lncrease bv '1 o/o 10 75) (1.25\

Decrease bv '1% (0.60) (1 11\

i) Maturitv oroflle of defined benefit oblioation
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting
oeriod)

5.S5 5.55

Between2and5vears 6.15 8.86
Between 5 and 10 vears 5.03 4.22
Above 10 vears 6.71 777



supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by
the Actuary.

2. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government securities
as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term ofthe obligations.

3. The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that
extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting pe od.

26,3 Segment Reporting
The Company has one Operating segment as identified by the Chief decision maker of the
company in accordance with lnd AS-108, "Operating Segmenf' (specifled under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015). Therefore
no additional disclosure is required to be given.

26.4 lhe related parties as per the terms of lnd As-24,"Related Party Disclosures", (specified
under section '133 ofthe Companies Act, 20'13, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2015) are disclosed below:-

a) Details of Related Parties:

Sr. No Particulars Name of Related Parties

1 Enterprises in which directors are
interested

Kumar Exports
Forgewell

Key Management Personnel

b) Transactions with the Related Parties:

Sh. Arun Kumar Sood
Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood
Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood

(Rs. in Lacs)

Nature of
Transactions during
the vear

Enterprises in which
directors are interesled

Key Management Personnel

2017-'t8 2016-17 2017 -18 2016-17
Purchases/Labour Job
from Kumar Expods

5'13.45 370.82

Sales to Kumar Exoorts 2,519 99 2,167.06
Remuneration
Ashish Kumar Sood 26.00 1S 80
Aiav Kumar Sood 26.00 19.80



Arun Kumar Sood 26.00 19.80

Medical
Reimbursement
Ashish Kumar Sood 0.31 0.89

Aiav Kumar Sood 0.30 1.05
Arun Kumar Sood 1.27 0.90
Amount Receivable
Kumar Exoorts 801.55 545.64
Amount Payable
Kumar Exoorts o.22
Ashish Kumar Sood 1.88
Aiay Kumar Sood 1.88 1.55
Arun Kumar Sood 1.88 1.55

26.5 Corporate Social Responsibility
The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on company. Therefore, no
disclosure is required to be made under this clause.

26.6 Fair Value Measurements
Set out below, is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's
Financial lnstruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of
fair values:

Financial lnstruments by
category

Ca.ryinq Value Fair Value
As at

March
31.2018

As at
l\rarch

31,2017

As at
April

1,2016

As at
March

31,201A

As at
March

31.2017

As at
April

1,2016
Financial Assets at
amortised cost
Other Financial Assets
(Non Current)

71.74 53.45 58.88 71.74 53.45 58.88

Trade Receivables 1,073.60 942.54 1,054.39 1,073.60 942 58 1.054.39
Cash & Cash
Equivalents

389.38 94 40 72.50 389.38 94.40 72.50

Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost

Borrowinos 564.61 324 04 455.69 564.61 328.04 455.69
Trade Payables 261.74 '195.65 183.'19 26't.74 195.65 183.19
Other Financial
Liabilities (current)

173.16 157.70 173.16 157.70 92.22

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair va,ue of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as
other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates



currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. ln addition to
being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate,
the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the
groPth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of
which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management
regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant
unobseNable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by
using Discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate
as at the end of the repoding period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2017 was
assessed to be insignificant.

Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the risk
characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into
account for the expected credit losses ofthese receivables.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 20'18,

are as shown below.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value
of flnancial instruments by valuation technique:

Level l: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3; techniques that use inputs that have a significant etfect on the recorded fair
value that are not based on observable market data.

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchv as on March 31. 20'18

carrying Value Fair Value

March 31,2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets at amodised cost

Other Financial Assets (Non Current) 71.74 71 74

Trade Receivables 1.073.60 1.073.60

Cash & Cash Equivalents 389.39 389.39

Financial Liabiliiies at amortised cost
Borrowinos 564.61 564.61

Trade Pavables 261.74 261.74

le



Other Financial Liabilities (Cuffent) 173.16 173.16

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchv as on March 31. 2017

Carrying Value Fair Value

March 31,2017 Level 'l Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets ai amortised cost
Other Financial Assets (Non Current) 53.45

Trade Receivables 942.58 942.58

Cash & Cash Equivalents 94.40 94.40

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowinqs 328.04 328.04

Trade Pavables 195.65 '195.65

Other Financial Liabilities (current) 157.70 157.70

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchY as on April 1. 2016

Carrying Value Fair Value

April 1,2016 Level I Level 2 Level 3

FinancialAssets at amortised cost
other Financial Assets (Non Current) 58.88 58.88

Trade Receivables 1,054.39 1,054.39

Cash & Cash Equivalents 72.50 72 50

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowinos 455.69 455.69

Trade Pavables '183.19 183.19

Other Financial Liabilities (current) 92.22

26.6 Earnings per share
ount Rs in lacs

Padiculars Year ended
March 31.2018

Year ended
March 31,2017

Basic Earninos per share
Numerator for earninqs oer share
- Proflt after taxation 104.63 81.83

Denominator for earninos per share
- Weighted number of equity shares outstanding (Nos in

lacs) durino the vear

51.47 51.87

Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs 10/-
eech) (Amount in Rs)

2.02 1.58

Diluted Earninqs Der share
Numerator for earninos oer share
- Profit after taxation 104.63 81.83

Denominator for earninqs Der share
- Weighted number of equity shares outstanding (Nos. in

lacs) durina the vear

51.47 51.87



Earnings per share-Diluted (one equity share of Rs 10/- 202 1.58
each) (Amount in Rs

26.7 Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an etficient capital structure and

maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2018, March 3'1,

2017 and as atApril 1, 2016.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

net debt. The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 15% to 35%

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31.2017 April '1, 2016

loans and borrowings (Net of Cash and
Cash Eouivalents)

281.38 403.71

Net Debt 224.67 28't.38 403.71

E.ruitv 948.56 a42.46 7 .44

Total Capital 948.56 842.46 761.48
CaDital and Nel Debt 1.175.23 1.123.A4 't.165.19

Gearing ratio (Net Debgcapital and Net
Debt)

,19.28% 25.03% 34.65%

26.8 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal flnancial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and

borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to

finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal flnancial assets include loans,

trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its

operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its

business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior

professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk

governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit

Committee. This process provides assurance to Company's senior management that the

Companyls financial risktaking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures

(rt'o:<
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and that flnancial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company

policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees poticies for managing each of these tisks
which are summarized as below:

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices Market prices comprises three types of risk:

curency rate .isk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and

commoaity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and

borrowing!, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables €-nd.payables' The

sensitivit! analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at lvlarch 31 20'18' The

analysej exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of

gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the. non-financial assets and

iiabiliti;s. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the essumed

changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial

liabilities held as of March 31, 2018.

(b) lnterest Rate Risk

lnterest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of

changes in market interestlates relates primarily to the Company's short term debt obligation at

floatiig interest rates. The Company's Term loan outstanding as at March 31, 2018 comprise of

flxed rite loans and accordingly, are not expose to risk offluctuation in market interest rate'

(c) Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial

insirument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit

risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and Jrom its financing activities'

including depolits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments

(i)Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the company based on its established policy' procedures

and control relating to custom;r credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are

iegutaay monitorei and any shipments to major iustomers are generally reviewed regularly by

the management of the comPanY.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime

expecied credit loss rnethod based on provision matrix. Ihe maximum exposure to credit risk at

the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets' The Company does not

notO iottateiat as security. itJ Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to

trade receivables as low.

(ii) Financial instrumenis and cash deposits



Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in
accordance with the policy.

The Company's ma{mum exposure to credit risk for the components ofthe balance sheet at 31

March 2018 is the carrying amounts . The Company's maximum exposure relating to financial
instruments is noted in liquidity table below. Trade Receivables and other financial assets are
written offwhen there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage
in the repayment plan with the Company.

Particulars As at March
3't 20'la

As at March
31 2017

As at April
12016

Financial assets for which allowance is
measured using 12 months Expected Credit
Loss lrethod (ECL)

Cash & Cash Equivalents 389.39 94.40 72.50
Other Non-Current flnancial assets 71.74 s3.45 58.88

Financial assets for which allowance as

measured using Life time Expected Credit
Loss Method (EcL)
Trade Receivable 1073.60 942.58 '1.054.39

Balances with banks is subject to low credit risks due to good credit
banks.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from
due

ratings assigned to these

the date the invoice falls

Particulars As at March 31 2018 As at March 31 2017 As at April 1 2016

0 to 180 Days due
past due date

2.12 4.30 1.64

lrore than 180 days
oast due date

1,071.48 938.28 1,052.75

Total 1.073.60 942.58 1.054.39

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company's objective is to at all times maintain
optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. lt maintains
adequate source of flnancing through the use of short term bank deposits and cash credit
facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt
and concluded it to be low.



Maturity profile of ,inancial liabilities

The table below provides the details regarding the
liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual

remaining contractual maturities of financial
undiscounted payments.

As at March 31.2018 Less than I Year More than 1 Year Total
Bonowinqs 515 42 49.'19 564.61
Other Current Financial
Liabilities

173.16 173.16

Trade Pavables 261.74 261.74
As at March 31.2017 Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total
Borowinos 250.22 77.42 328 04
Other Current Financial
Liabilities

157.70

Trade Pavables 195.65 195.65
As at ADril 1-2016 Less than 1 Year More than 'l Year Toial
Borrowinqs 420.23 35.46 455.69
Other Cunent Financial
Liabilities

92.22 92 22

Trade Pavables 183.19 '183.19

26.9 Disclosure as required by lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS '101) first time adoptioh of
lndian Accounting Standards

These are Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with lnd AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the comparative information presented in these
financial statements for the year ended lvlarch 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening lnd
AS balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 Cfhe Company's date of transition). ln preparing its
opening lnd AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in
financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act (previous GMP or lndian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous
GAAP to lnd AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash
flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed

A. 1 Deemed cost

lnd AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to fair value of its property, plant and
equipment as recognized in financial statements as at the date of transition to lnd AS,
measured as per previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition or apply principles of lnd AS retrospectively. lnd AS 101 also permits the first
time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying valud for all of its property, plant and



equipment as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition to lnd
AS. This exemption can be also used for intangible assets covered by lnd AS 38-

The Company has elected to consider fair value of its property, plant and equipment as
its deemed cost on the date oftransition to lnd AS.

A. 2 lnd AS mandatory exceptions

A.2.1 Estimates

An entity estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date of transition to lnd AS shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP
(after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
lnd AS estimates at April 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date
made in conformity with previous GAAP.

A.2.2 Derecogniiion of financial assets and financial liabilities

lnd AS 101 requires a flrst time adopter to apply the derecognition provisions of lnd AS
109 prospectively for tEnsactions occurring on or after the date of transition to lnd AS.
Accordingly, the Company has applied the derecognition requirement for financial
assets and financial liabilities in lnd AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on
or after date of transition to lnd AS.

A.2.3 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

lnd AS 1O'1 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial
assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist on the date oftransaction to lnd

AS. Accordingly, the Company has applied the above requirement prospectively.

A.2,4 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to asses and determine the impairment allowance on

financial assets as per lnd AS 109 using the reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that
financial instruments which were initially recognized and compare that to the credit risk
at the date of transition to lnd AS. The Company has applied his exception prospectively.



KTJII'AR AUTOCAST LIIIITITED
NOTES FORIIJIING PART OF THE FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED IIIIARCH 31, 2OI8

NOrE.26.r0la)Efi.cio,lnd AS ad h.**ar31trMlrch2017rnd1!tAp,ir2016

P.ope.'y P.il and Equpmenr

(irLons rem Loans and advams

( ocasrr.nd cash equvarenrs
( v) Bank barane orher than (ii ) above

(iiD orh.r F iMciar L ab riles(orher lha n those
sped,ied in (b) b. d, lo be sp€ored)

.

. .

.

1',
.

;-

;*

'

."'."



Reoncirialion Noto. (26.10 {A) I

)Frnan.iar Liabil yar,modLed cosr

alliabilyandctra@ed'op6liol06.

an3$etor[abiltyinlh6

lowioapEcleb@rdg€lutyasrun&rlNDAspovisiotrfo.grafuityh

)R.cra..ircar.norcuiicni run

b it eE * P.r nd .!S have heei ruc as

( e) Re.rasincariod Nefrins or Prcv
waswonglyclassi,yinqadvan@ldadolhe@fientl3bl'*Bpedively

Sgq

#



KUMAR AUTOCAST LIII/IITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTHEYEAR ENOEO MARCH

NOTE-23.10 (B)Erf*t or tnd as ldop{on on the srrndatono srabh

31, ZOla

t_

Purcr..ss or sldl +TEde

ctarqesflrve oles ot ln'srn soodr m'. rr-D@r6s( afo sr(r + t€de

Depcc arior 6nd afrod zal on Expens.

Poflr b.roro ercepttonat hems .nd t x

Pbilu {L6s) fo. tho p.dod

ol,l€r comoEh.nsive rneme

RemeasuEme,x ol De,in.d aedeft P an

IolaLCmprchens w lMme ror rhe per od (comp sinq protir (LGs)3nd clher
comp.ehensi€ r6me lor th6 p€riod)

(0

(0

Reonc .llon Nobs{r3.10(B))

ndorrl' previous GAAP, evenue nom 55ro ol qmds vas presenled .xclusive or excr* ddy Uids lnd aS Bvsu. iim ste ot q@ds E orcsenred inctusiv. ot
@seduly E,ci* d'xy p.id 3 prcsef,r.d on rhe fa@ or stdem.d or pEri ahd toss 5@unl a3 p.d or.xr€ns..

r lho prcvi@s GMP, inveilorles of r nished g oods and consurobles M€ trong ry mns derd as a pan or 6sl or matedats @nsumed undertnd AS, rh.se
ben relassiried lo changes n invenlo es oI rinishd s@ds, volk in prcgress a srock in rad€. Furher sm6 ep.nses rctales Io @sr d nareria coreumodwng y crassiried under olh.. exps

{c) Financl.r Lr.biriiyaramonE.d cosr

undor lhe pBioB GqAP, lran ecl on msls in@ned n 6i.cuon wth boru ngs arc amdr e.d upii@l and ch.aan b p6ft or toss ,or itr6 p. riod under id as,
r.nsacl on cosrB .rc in.tuded in ln€ in lia r@s nifon amoum oitinanc a| abitily and cn.rued io ioft or los" r"-ng .fl"'di"" inr"r"d ra" r"roa

(d) R.clissincsnon or Loss on sit. or A*crs

Underlhe pEvous GAAP Lesons $ pad or ex@plimatiims Underr

under the p,qio6 GAAP, deremd tax is €ldtaled os ng th. nem. staremnt appmcl mrcrr ro:tls on oinerenG b6iE€n raxabte profils .nd .@untin!
pDrils ror lhe pedod lnd as 12 - rncm! Tu rcquiG3 enlfti* to a@ir for dsrercd ra* 6in9 $e barane sheel appE n, $41]ch f@ses on rempo€ry

Fin,shsd soods.nd consunabres

b.l*een errying menr of an asset or tia bit ly in lhe bal.ne shs.l and its r.x b.so

Rom...uEment or Acruriar Grin/Loss 15 p.rtNo.As 19

Under nd .n GAAP th. .nl E @sl, ircrud ins aotuand g6irc and tosses. arc cn.Bed lo
$ ns and rosses Ih. efi€d ol the asser e ting, exc ud ns amouds hcruded ii net inreesr and lhe rctum on p an issele exciudins
.mouib iicruded in n6t inleresl oi the net de,inod iabiiry) arc E6snt*d i. ba ance



KUMAR AUTOCAST
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2018

NOTE -26.10 (C) Reconciliation of totalequity lndian GAAPVs.IND AS as at 3lrrMarch 2Ot7 an.t 1'rAprit2016

Note 31_O3 2ll,t7 01.04_2016

Totalequity (shar€holder's fund6) under previous GAAP

(a)

858.05

142

776.61

-r.15

-13.99

Total adiuslrnent to equity -t5.6t -15.14

Totalequity (shareholdei6 fu nds) under per IND AS 442.44 761.47

{a) Deferred t x as per balance sheetapproach

Unde.lhe previous GAAP, deferred tax is calculated using the income statement appoach, which focLrses on diffe€nce between taxabte profirs
and accourling Prcfils for the period. lrd AS 12 ' lncome Tax requires entites to accounl for deferred laxes using rhe balance sheet apprach, wh ch
focuses on tempomry differences between carrying amount of ar asset or tiabitity in rhe batance sheet and irs rax base

(b) Provision for Oratuity
Underthe prevoud G^AP, Companywas following a practice lo record gratuity as and when il became payable, howeverunder IND AS provision
forsBtulv has been recoqnised as perlND-AS 19

,/:t//



26.11 The balances of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances, Deposits and Trade payablesare subject to confirmation/ reconcitiation and suosequeni aqGr-.i[;;r;]-
26.12 ln,opinion. of the Board, all the current assets, loans & advances have the value onrealization in the ordinary course of business al least equal to amouniii wfrich ttrey are

26.13 Previous year amounts have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm withcurrent year presentation.

FOR ASHWANI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN:000497N

PLACE: LUOHTANA
DATED: 29th June, 2Olg

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

_rL r(
mJHrfffr.*g ASHISH SOOD

DIRECTOR
DIN- 00685937

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIRECTOR
otN- 00672179

\ka^ou
PMNAV KHANNA
COMPANY SECRETARY

/6P
?I
*l_-.

q
_li

LALIT RUMAR



Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) 

                             of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN:  L27101PB1985PLC006100 

Name of the company: Kumar Autocast Limited 

Registered office: C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab. 

Name of the member (s):  

 

Registered address:  

 

E-mail Id:  

 

Folio No/ Client Id:  

 

DP ID:  

 

 

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint  

1. Name: ……………………  

Address:  

E-mail Id:  

Signature: --------------------- 

2. Name: ……………………  

Address:  

E-mail Id:  

Signature: --------------------- 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33
rd

Annual general 

meeting of the company, to be held on the 30
th
 day of September, 2018, at 11:00 A.M. at C-179, Focal 

Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 

below:   



 

Sr. 

No. 

Resolution(s) Vote 

For  Against 

1. Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet, report of 

Director’s and Auditor’s for the financial year 31st March, 2018 

  

2. To Re-appoint a Director in place of Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN: 

00685937), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 

re-appointment. 

  

3. To Re-appoint a Director in place of Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (DIN: 

00685937), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 

re-appointment. 

  

4. To ratify the appointment of M/s Ashwani & Associates (Chartered 

Accountants), Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2018-19. 

  

5. Blanket approval for related party transactions under the provisions of 

section 188 of Companies Act, 2013. 

  

6. To Regularize of Additional Director, Smt. Neha Sood, by appointing 

her as Director of the company. 

  

7. To Increase Remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time 

Director from Rs. 250,000 per Month to Rs. 3, 00,000 w.e.f 01st Of 

October 2018. 

  

8. To Increase Remuneration of Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time 

Director from Rs. 250,000 per Month to Rs. 3, 00,000 w.e.f 01st Of 

October 2018. 

  

9. To Increase Remuneration of Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing 

Director from Rs. 250,000 per Month to Rs. 3, 00,000 w.e.f 01st Of 

October 2018. 

  

 

Signed this…… day of……… 2018  

 

Signature of shareholder  

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)  

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  

  



Route Map 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If undelivered, please mail it to 

 

Kumar Autocast Ltd 

Registered Office: # 179, Phase VI,  

Focal Point, Ludhiana 


